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To,

NOTICE OF THE SIXTY SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Members,
Trade Wings Limited

Notice is hereby given that the Sixty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders
of Trade Wings Limited will be held on Friday, September 30, 2016 at 4.00 P.M. at the
registered office of the Company at 6, Mascharenhas Building, M.G. Road, Panaji, Goa -
403001 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

a) To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone Audited Financial Statements of
the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2016 including the Audited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016 and the Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash
Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on that date and notes
related thereto together with the Reports of Directors’ and the Auditors’ thereon.

b) To receive, consider and adopt the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of
the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2016 including the Audited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016 and the Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash
Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on that date and notes
related thereto together with the Reports of the Auditors’ thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN 00221661), who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. :

To ratify the appointment of Auditors and fix their remuneration and in this regard,
to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, 141, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force) and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors, the appointment of M/s. Santosh Shah &
Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 121711W), who were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in the Sixty Fourth Annual General
Meeting to hold office for the period of 3 (Three) financial years ie. until the
conclusion of the Sixty Seventh Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby ratified to
hold office till the conclusion of the 67% Annual General Meeting to be held in the
year 2017 and the Board of Directors of the Company be authorized to fix their
remuneration at a later date.”
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4. To appoint Branch Auditors for the financial year 2016-17 and in this regard, to
consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution: : |

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 143(8) and other
applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there
under, (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force), the Board be and is hereby authorised to appoint as Branch
Auditor(s) for various branches of the Company, whether existing or which may be
opened/acquired at a later date, in consultation with the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, any person qualified to act as Branch Auditor(s) within the provisions of
Section 143(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and to fix the terms and conditions of their
appointment and remuneration.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. Appointment of Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN 00221661), as Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, 196, 197 and 203 of
the Companies, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Schedule V and all the other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under
(including any statutory modifications or re-enactments(s) thereof for the time being
in force), provisions of Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the
approvals, consents, permissions, sanctions, etc., of the Central Government and all
other concerned statutory, regulatory and other authorities, if any, to the extent
applicable and required and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be
prescribed, stipulated or imposed by any of them while granting such approvals,
consents, permissions, sanctions and the like, which may be agreed to by the Board
of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board” which shall
include duly authorized committee thereof for the time being in force exercising the
powers conferred upon it by the Board), and as per the recommendation of
Nomination and remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors,
approval of the Members be and is hereby given to designate Dr. Shailendra P.
Mittal (DIN: 00221661} as Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, for a
period of three years with effect from May 30, 2016 till May 29, 2019 on the terms
and condition including remuneration as stated in the Explanatory Statement
pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 annexed to this Notice, with
liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the
said appointment.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year during the currency of
the tenure of Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) as the Chairman & Managing
Director of the Company, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate,
the Company will pay remuneration by way of salary, benefits, perquisites,
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allowances, etc. as specified in the draft agreement as the minimum remuneration
subject to compliance with the applicable provisions of Sections 196, 197 and all
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act read with Schedule V of the Act, as
amended from time to time, subject to the approval of the Central Government, if
and to the extent necessary and applicable, notwithstanding that the same is in
excess of the maximum remuneration permitted to be paid to him under the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as they may, in their absolute
discretion, deem necessary, desirable and expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

6. Appointment of Mrs. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) as a Non-Executive
(Woman) Director of the Company.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 160 read with Sections 149,
152 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and other
Rules made there under (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force), Mrs. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797),
who is not disqualified to become a Director under the Companies Act, 2013 and
who is eligible for appointment as a Director and in respect of whom the Company
has received a notice in writing under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a
Member proposing her name as a candidate for the office of Director of the
Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive (Woman) Director on the
Board of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion,
deem necessary, desirable and expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

7. Determination of fees for delivery of any document through a particular mode of
delivery to a member:

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass. the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution: '

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 20 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules prescribed there
under, (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force) the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to charge
from a member in advance, a sum equivalent to the estimated actual expenses of
delivery of the documents through a particular mode if any request has been made
by such member for delivery of such document to him through such mode of
service, provided that such request along with the requisite fees has been duly
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received by the Company at least one week in advance of the dispatch of the
- document by the Company,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as they may, in their absolute discretion, deem necessary,
desirable and expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

8. Toapprove the payment of professional fees paid to Ms. Beena Natubhai Barot (DIN:
07326016) as an Additional Non-Independent Non-Executive (Woman) Director of
the Company:

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the proviso to Section 197(4) and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules
prescribed there under, (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force), subject to the provisions of Articles of
Association of the Company and as recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee and approved by Board of
Directors, the approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded for payment of
professional fees of Rs. 53,314/- per month paid to Ms. Beena Natubhai Barot (DIN:
07326016) during her tenure as an Additional Non-Independent Non-Executive
(Woman) Director of the Company from November 5, 2015 to June 10, 2016.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as they may, in their absolute discretion, deem necessary,
desirable and expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board
For Trade Wings Limited

Sd/-

Dr, Shailendra P. Mittal

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00221661
Date: August 12, 2016 Address: 62-A, Mittal Bhavan, Pedder
Place: Mumbai : ‘ Road, Mumbai 400026

Registered Office:
6, Mascharenhas Building, M.G. Road,

Panaji, Goa - 403001
CIN: L63040GA1949PLC000168
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NOTES:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of himself and such proxy need not be a Member of the
Company. The proxy, in order to be effective, must be duly completed, stamped and
signed and should be received at the Registered Office of the Company not less than
48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of the Members not exceeding fifty (50) and
holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than ten percent of the
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder. A proxy form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the
Companies, societies etc, must be supported by an appropriate
resolution/authority, as applicable. The Proxy-holder shall prove his identity at the
time of attending the Meeting.

2. The Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents are M/s. Bigshare Services Private
Limited having their Registered Office at E-2 & 3, Ansa Industrial Estate, Saki-Vihar
Road, Sakinaka, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400072.

3. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect of the Special Businesses as set out above is annexed hereto.

4. Map of venue of the AGM is given after the notice.

5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain
closed from Friday, September 23, 2016 to Friday, the September 30, 2016 (both days

inclusive). :
6. Members are requested to:

- (i) send all share transfer lodgements (Physical mode)/correspondence to the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent upto the date of book closure.

(i) write to the Compliance Officer of the Company for their queries or if desirous of
obtaining any information, concerning the accounts and operations of the
Company, at the Company’s Registered Office at least seven days before the date
of the Annual General Meeting in order to enable the management to keep the
information ready at the meeting.

(iif) Quote Registered Folio Number or DP ID/Client ID in all the correspondence.

7. For the convenience of the Members, attendance slip is enclosed in the Annual
Report. Members/Proxy Holders/ Authorized Representatives are requested to fill in
and sign at the space provided therein and submit the same at the venue of the
Meeting. Proxy/Authorized Representatives of Members should state on the
attendance slip as ‘Proxy’ or ‘Authorized Representative’, as the case may be.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

Further, those who hold shares in demat form are requested to write their Client Id
and DP Id and those who hold shares in physical forms are requested to write their
folio number on the attendance slip for easy identification at the meeting.

Corporate Members intending to send their representatives to attend the Meeting are
requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the board resolution
authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the Meeting on their behalf.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 facility for making
nominations is available for shareholders in respect of the physical shares held by
them. Form SH 13 for making nomination can be obtained from R&TA. The duly
filled in nomination form shall be sent to R&TA at their above mentioned address.
Members holding shares in electronic form may contact their respective Depository
Participants for availing this facility.

Members, who are holding Shares in identical order of names in more than one
Folio, are requested to apply to the Company/ R&TA along with the relevant Share
Certificates for consolidation of such Folios in one Folio.

Members are informed that in case joint holders attend the Meeting, only such joint
holder who is higher in the order of names in the Register of Members/Beneficial
Holders will be entitled to vote.

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN 00221661), Director retires by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Also, he is
proposed to be designated as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.
Further, Mrs. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797), is proposed to be appointed as
Non-Executive (Woman) Director in the Annual General Meeting. Pursuant to
Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and as mandated under Secretarial Standards - 2, brief resume of
the Directors seeking appointment or re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas, names of the
Companies in which they hold Directorships and the Memberships/ Chairmanships
of Committees of the Board and their shareholding in the Company, are annexed
hereto. The Directors have furnished the relevant consents, declarations, etc. for their
appointment/ reappointment.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company between 10.00 am. and 12.00 (Noon) on any
working day except on Public Holidays, Saturdays & Sundays, upto and including
the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

As a measure of economy, copies of the Annual Report will not be distributed at the
Annual General Meeting, Shareholders are, therefore, requested to kindly bring their
copies at the time of attending the Meeting.

As per Sections 101, 136 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the Rules made there under and circulars issued by the Ministry of
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16.

Corporate Affairs, Companies can now send various reports, documents,
communications, including but not limited to Annual Reports to its members
through electronic mode at their registered e-mail addresses. The Company believes
in green initiative and is concerned about the environment. Hence, Annual Report
including inter alia the Report of the Board of Directors, Auditors’ Report, Balance
Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement, Notice of this AGM,
instructions for e-voting, attendance slip, proxy form, etc. is being sent by electronic
mode to all Members whose addresses are registered with the Company/R&TA/
depositories unless a Member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For -
Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies of the
relevant documents are being sent by the permitted mode,

To support “Green initiative”, Members who have not registered their e-mail
addresses, so far, are requested to register their e-mail addresses with their
depository participants, in respect of electronic holdings. Members holding shares in
physical form are requested to kindly register their e-mail addresses with the
Company’s R&TA at their abovementioned address. Annual Report is also available
on the Company’s website at www.tradewings.in and made available for inspection
at the Registered Office of the Company during the business hours.

Votirig through electronic means:

A. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and
Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide the Members the facility to
exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Sixty
Sixth Annual General Meeting {AGM)} by electronic means. The Company has
appointed Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) for facilitating e-voting,

B. Members are requested to note that the Company is providing facility for remote
e-voting and the businesses as given in the notice of 66t AGM may be transacted
through electronic voting system. It is hereby clarified that it is not mandatory
for a Member to vote using the remote e-voting facility. The members shall note
that the facility for voting shall also be provided at the meeting through poll
paper and the members (as on cut-off date) attending the meeting who have not
casted their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their voting rights at
the meeting, If the members have already cast their vote by remote e-voting prior
to the meeting they may attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their
vote again and his vote, if any, cast at the meeting shall be treated as invalid.

C. A Member may avail of the facility at his/her/its discretion, as per the
- instructions provided herein:

The voting period begins on Tuesday, September 27, 2016 at 9.00 a.m. and ends
on Thursday, September 29, 2016 at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of
the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form,
as on the cut-off date (record date) of Friday, September 23, 2016 may cast their
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()
(i)
@)

(v)
(vi)

(vi)

vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for votlng

thereafter,

Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

Click on Shareholders

Now Enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

¢. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registered with the Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to
www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then

your existing password is to be used.

If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as
physical shareholders)
¢ Members who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the
sequence number (refer serial no. printed on the name and
address sticker/Postal Ballot Form/mail) in the PAN field.
¢ In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the
applicable number of 0's before the number after the first
two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. E.g. If your
name is Ramesh Kumar with serial number 1 then enter
RAQ0000001 in the PAN field.
Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in
Bank dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or in
Details | the company records in order to login.
OR s If both the details are not recorded with the dep051tory or |
Date of company please enter the member id / folio number in the
Birth Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (iv).
(DOB)
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(viii)

(&)

(xiv)

(xv)
(xvi)

(xvii)

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the Company
selection screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now
reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter
their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password
is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-
voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential. :

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant ‘Trade Wings Limited’ on which you choose
to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against
the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as
desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO
implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire
Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on
“OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify
your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote.

You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here
to print” option on the Voting page.

If Demat account holder has fbrgotten the changed password then Enter the User
ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the
details as prompted by the system.

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting
available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded
from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download the
app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please
follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your
mobile.
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{xix)

(xx)

Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and
Custodian are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register
themselves as Corporates.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity
should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the
admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the
account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be
able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF
format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

In case of members receiving the physical copy:

(i) Please follow all steps from sl no. (i) to sl. no. (xix) above to cast vote.

(i) The voting period begins on Tuesday, September 27, 2016 at 9.00 a.m. and ends

on Thursday, September 29, 2016 at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of
the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form,
as on the cut-off date (record date) of Friday, September 23, 2016 may cast their
vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting
thereafter.

(iii) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the

Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the
paid up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Friday,
September 23, 2016.

Mr. Hemanshu Kapadia (FCS: 3477 and CP 2285), Proprietor of M/s. Hemanshu
Kapadia & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, Mumbai or failing him
Mr, Vipin Mehta (FCS 8587 and CP 9869), Partner of VPP & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries, Mumbai has been appointed as the Scrutinizer
by the Board of Directors to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and
transparent manner. -

10
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F. Voting shall be allowed at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which
voting is to be held with the assistance of Scrutiniser, by use of ballot paper for
all those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by
availing the remote e-voting facility.

G. The Scrutinizer(s) shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the general
meeting, first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes
cast through e-voting in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the
employment of the Company and make, within a period not exceeding two (2}
days from the conclusion of the meeting a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of
the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the
Company or a person authorised by him in writing who shall countersign the
same.

H. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutiniser’s shall be placed on
the website of the Company www.tradewings.in and on the website of CDSL
immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or by a person duly
authorised. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to BSE Limited,
where the equity shares of the Company are listed.

. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed
to have been passed on the date of the 66t AGM i.e. September 30, 2016.

11
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Map of the venue of the AGM:

Venue of AGM: 6, Mascharenhas Building, M.G. Road, Panaji, Goa - 403001

12
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESSES
PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item no 5:

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) has benefited the Company through his
knowledge, expertise and dedication. Also his multi disciplinary approach has
immensely contributed in achieving new heights of success by the Company over a
period of time.

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) has taken corrective steps to protect the
Company from repercussions which arise due to recessionary pressures hovering over
the globe and has enabled the Company to achieve the sustained and steady growth
during these times. - _

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) has been involved in leading the business of the
Company successfully and has been instrumental in achieving substantial growth for the
Company as Whole-time Director and CFO of the Company. After the sad demise of Mr.
Vinayak Ubhyakar (DIN: 0221822) on May 1, 2016, the Board of Directors in their
Meeting held on May 30, 2016, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, have designated him as the Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company for a period of three year with effect from May 30, 2016 to May 29, 2019,
subject to the approval of the members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company. Therefore, he ceased to be Whole-time Director and CFO of the Company and
acted as Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. May 30, 2016.  _

Further pursuant to provision of Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013, the terms and
Conditions on basis of which appointment of Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) as
Managing Director is made is provided hereunder.

1. Tenure:

The term of Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) as the Managing Director is for a
period of three (3) years with effect from May 30, 2016 till May 29, 2019.

2. Remuneration:

Salary

Salary up to maximum of Rs 5,00,000/-per month, as may be decided by the Board of
Directors or Committee of the Board, if any from time to time.

Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expvenses:

The Company shall reimburse from time to time all expenses that he may be required to
incur in the course of performance of duties as Managing Director of the Company.
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Minimum Remuneration:

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, where in any financial year
during the currency of his tenure, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, remuneration by way of salary and perquisites shall not exceed the
aggregate of the annual remuneration as provided above or the maximum remuneration
payable as per the limits set out in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, whichever is
lower, unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors (Which include the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board).

Powers of the Board to decide the remuneration:

The Board of Directors (Which include the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
constituted by the Board) has liberty to alter and vary the remuneration and/or
agreement subject to the limits specified in schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,
including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force
or as may hereafter be made by the Central Government in that behalf from time to time
or any amendments thereto as may be agreed to between the Board of Directors and Dr.
Shailendra P, Mittal (DIN: 00221661).

He shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board of Directors
or Committee/s thereof from the date of his appointment.

3. Resignation:

- He shall be entitled to resign his office upon giving to the Company Three months
notice in writing expiring at the end of any calendar month of his intention to do so.

4, Termination:

The Company shall be entitled to terminate the Agreement:

(a) by giving not less than three months notice in writing to the Managing Director, if in
the opinion of the Company’s Board of Directors that the Managing Director shall
have been incapacitated by reasons of his il health or accident from performing his
duties under this Agreement for a total period of six months continuous or
otherwise in the preceding period of 12 months, or

(b} by not less than one month notice in writing if, in the opinion of Company’s Board
of Directors, the Managing Director shall have committed any serious breach of the
terms of this Agreement or shall have been guilty of causing loss (monetary or
otherwise) to the Company or of conduct tending to bring the Company of his
position as a Managing Director into disrepute or shall commit any act of
insolvency, compound with his creditors generally PROVIDED THAT in any of the
aforesaid cases the Company shall be entitled to call upon the Managing Director to
cease to act as such forthwith from the date on which such notice as aforesaid is
served on him if the Company shall offer to pay to the Managing Director his salary
under the Agreement for the period of such notice and shall offer to permit the
Managing Director to avail of and enjoy the perquisites or benefits to which he is
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entitled under this Agreement for the period of such notice or recompense the
Managing Director in terms of money for such benefits or perquisites or partly one
partly the other. .

5. Rotational:

The Managing Director shall not be liable to retire by rotation and he shall not be

reckoned as a Director for the purpose of determining the rotation for retirement of

Directors.

Further, the details to be mentioned in the notice, as required under Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 is as follows:

General information:

1. Nature of Industry:

The Coméany is engaged in the business of Travel and Travel related Services,

2. Date or expected date of Commencement of Commercial Production/operations:
The Company is in operation since more than 6 decades.

3. In case of new Company, expected date of Commencement of activities as per
projects approved by Financial Institutions appearing in the prospectus;

Not Applicable.
n Financial Performance based on given indicators:

As per the audited financial statements of the Company following are the details of
financial performance of the Company during last five years:

(Amt in Rs.)
Particulars As on March 31 of
f,ma““al 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
arameters

T 16,79,07,358 | 15,65,95,194 | 14,18,73,076 | 15,31,89,790 | 16,04,45,616
urnover

Other Income 15455999 | 2,12,60,008 | 3,01,69,011 | 2,22,89,704 | 1,81,94,033

Net Profit (as per|  D0A7222| -129579 | 1242043 1362932 3930167

Profit & Loss
Account)

Net Worth 1.68 -0.43 0.41 0.45 1.31
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Currently the Company is performing well. However, in the event of unforeseen
circumstances and conditions beyond the Control of the Company, the profitability of
the Company may be affected. Barring unforeseen circumstances, it is expected that the
Company will perform well in the future.

5. Foreign Investments or Collaborations, if any: -

The Company does not have any Foreign Direct Investment or collaboration with any
foreign entities.

Information about the appointee:
1. Background Details:

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) is the Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company. Earlier to that he acted as the Chairman, Whole-time Director and CFO of the
Company. He has completed Industrial Engineering from Mumbai University (erstwhile
known as Bombay University), MBA from Wharton School of Business, PHD and OPM
from Harvard University, USA. He has knowledge and expertise in travel, tourism and
related activities.

2. Past Remuneration:

For the period April 1, 2013 to March 31, 2014, the remuneration paid to Dr. Shailendra
P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) was Rs. 2,00,000/- per month, which was further increased
from April 1, 2014 to Rs.2,50,000/ - per month.

3. Recognition/Awards:
No.
4. Job Profile and Suitability:

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) possesses the necessary qualifications and
expertise to be the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. He oversees all
the activiies of the Company including financial, personnel and commercial
management and corporate planning and implementation. He also reviews all financials
of the Company, creates plans and programs for the overall development of the
Company. He also oversees Board of Directors’ meeting and ensures that senior
management follows Directors’ recommendations while implementing internal controls
procedures and systems.

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) has requisite talent and capacity to handle the
projects planned by the Company. He also has the vast experience in Travel Industry.
He functions under the control, superintendence and direction of the Board of Directors.
In view of his experience in the Travel Industry, he is suitable person to take the job.
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5. Remuneration proposed: -

Salary up to maximum of Rs 5,00,000/-per month, as may be decided by the Board of
Directors or Committee of the Board, if any from time to time. '

Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses:

The Company shall reimburse from time to time all expenses that he may be required to
incur in the course of performance of duties as Managing Director of the Company.

Minimum Remuneration:

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, where in any financial year
during the currency of his tenure, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, remuneration by way of salary and perquisites shall not exceed the
aggregate of the annual remuneration as provided above or the maximum remuneration
payable as per the limits set out in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, whichever is
lower, unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors (Which include the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board). '

6. Comparative Remuneration Profile with respect to Industry, size of the Company,
Profile of the position and person (In case of expatriates, the relevant details
would be with respect to the country of his origin):

The Board of Directors is strongly of the opinion that remuneration package offered to
Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661), as Chairman and Managing Director, is
reasonable and in line with Industry standards applicable in Travel Industry. The
comparative figure of the remuneration payable to the Managing Directors of the
Companies engaged in Travel Industry is as under:

Name of the Compan Position of Managerial Scale 6f Remuneration
° pany Personnel (Amount in Rupees)

Thomas Cook (India) . .

Limited Managing Director 3,62,97,154/- (p.a.)*

Cox & Kings Limited Whole-Time Director 2,00,01,546/- (p.a.)*

*The amounts mentioned above have been obtained from the Annual reports sent by the
Companies to BSE Ltd. for the financial year 2014-15 and which were available on the
website of BSE Ltd.

7. Pecuniary relationship, directly or indirectly with the Company or relationship
with the managerial personnel, if any.

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661), does not have any other pecuniary
relationship, directly or indirectly, with the Company or managerial personnel, except to
the extent of the loan given by him to the Company, salary drawn by him as the
Chairman and Managing Director and 9,640 Equity Shares of the Company held by him
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in his individual capacity and 1,079 Equity Shares held by him in his name as Trustee of
Shailendra Mittal Family Trust. Further, he also holds the majority stake in the Holding
Company, namely, Narayani Hospitality & Academic Institution Private Limited.

Other information:
1. Reason for loss/inadequate profits:

The Company has earned profit during the financial year 2015-16 but profit is not
adequate to pay remuneration on above scale. The inadequate profit is mainly due to
increasing competition and recession in the industry.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement:

The Company is in the process of maintaining a consistent performance under the
guidance and directions of Dr. Shailendra P, Mittal (DIN: 00221661) and is in the process
of implementing the future plans designed by the Board. The Company has come out of
the losses and has earned Profit during the financial year 2015-16.

3. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:

With the steps taken by the Company on operations front in improving the operating
parameters by increasing the capacity through upgradation and expansion at its
locations, wherever feasible, it is expected that the costs will come down resulting in an
increase in profitability of the Company,

Special resolution at Item no. 5 of this Notice seeks the approval of the Members for
designating Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) as the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company for a term of three consecutive years commencing from May
30, 2016 to May 29, 2019 pursuant to Sections 196, 197 and read with rules made there
under and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from
time to time. The Board of Directors considers that his continued association with the
Company would be of immense benefit to the Company. Accordingly, the Board of
Directors recommends Special Resolution as set out at Item no. 5 of this Notice in
relation to designating Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) as the Chairman and
Managing Director for the approval by the Members of the Company.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, except Dr.
Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661), to the extent of loan given by him to the Company,
Remuneration drawn by him from the Company and shareholding in the Company as
mentioned in point no. 7 above, are concerned or interested in the said Resolution.

Item no. 6:

Mrs. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797), has experience of more than a decade in
the travel and tourism industry. She has successfully handled the overall responsibility
of the travel and allied services, both domestic and international. She has also trained
persons in handling of various travel and allied service activities.
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Mrs. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) was appointed as an Additional Non-
Executive (Woman} Director on the Board of the Company with effect from July 5, 2016.
As per the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, an Additional Director
holds office up to the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the
last date on which the Annual General Meeting of the Company should be held
whichever is earlier. A notice has been received from a member of the Company under
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, signifying his intention to propose appointment
of Mrs. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) as a Non-Executive (Woman) Director
along with a deposit of Rs.1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lac Only).

In terms of Sections 149, 152, 160, 161 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, Mrs. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN:
07557797), being eligible for appointment as a Director, is proposed to be appointed as
Non-executive (Woman) Director of the Company.

Further, the Company has received the following documents from Ms. Jacinta Bazil
Nayagam (DIN: 07557797);

a) Consent in writing to act as a Director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to sub-section () of
Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, '

b) Letter of intimation in the prescribed form DIR-8 pursuant to Section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that she is not disqualified-to become Director
under the Companies Act 2013; '

The Board considers that her association would be of immense benefit to the Company
and it is desirable to avail the services of Mrs. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797), as
a Non-Executive (Woman) Director on the Board of the Company.

Acc:_ordingly, the Bc_)ard recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 6 for the
approval of members as an Ordinary resolution.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives, except, Mrs. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) herself, are concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no.6 of the
accompanying Notice.

Item No. 7:

As per the provisions of Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 a document may be
served on any member by sending it to him by Post or by Registered post or by Speed
post or by Courier or by delivering at his office or address or by such electronic or other
mode as may be prescribed. It further provides that a member can request for delivery of
any document to him through a particular mode for which he shall pay such fees as may
be determined by the company in its Anfwal General Meeting. - :
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Therefore, to enable the members to avail of this facility, it is necessary for the Company
to determine the fees to be charged for delivery of a document in a particular mode, as
mentioned in the resolution.

Since the Companies Act, 2013 requires the fees to be determined in the Annual General
Meeting, the Directors accordingly recommend the Ordinary Resolution at item no. 7 of
the accompanying notice, for the approval of the members of the Company.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at
item no. 7 of the accompanying Notice.

Item No. 8:

Proviso to Section 197(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 permits payment of professional
fees to Non-Executive Directors of the Company which also requires approval of the
shareholders. Ms. Beena Natubhai Barot (DIN: 07326016) was appointed as an
Additional Non-Independent Non-Executive (Woman) Director, by the Board of
Directors’ w.ef. November 5, 2015. She has a Diploma in Medical Laboratory
Technology and is having more than 20 years experience in the field of Tours and Travel
related services.

Considering the experience of Ms. Beena Natubhai Barot (DIN: 07326016) and expertise
in professional services provided by her, it was decided that, a certain amount should be
paid to her by way of professional fees in order to reward her expertise and professional
advices. Accordingly, on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee & Audit Committee and approval by the Board of Directors of the Company
it was decided to pay her Rs. 53,314/- per month as professional fees effective from
November 5, 2015. However, she could not devote time to the Company and due to her
pre-occupation elsewhere, she, resigned from the Board of the Company with effect
from June 10, 2016. :

Details of professional fees paid to Ms. Beena Natubhai Barot (DIN: 07326016) during
the Financial Year 2015-16 is provided in Form MGT-9.

Accordingly, approval of the Members is sought by way of Special Resolution under the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for payment of professional fees paid
to Ms. Beena Natubhai Barot (DIN: 07326016), as an Additional Non-Independent Non-
Executive (Woman) Director of the Company, for the period November 5, 2015 to June
10, 2016, as set out in the Resolution at Item No. 8 of the Notice.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, are concerned or
interested in the Resolution mentioned at Item No. 8 of the notice.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 8 for the approval of the
Members.
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Annexure to item no. 2, 5, 6 and 8 of the Notice calling the 66 Annual General

Meeting

Details of Directors seeking appointment or re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards II issued by ICSI:

Name of the Director Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal Mrsi\{:;iangt:nl:azil
(DIN: 00221661) (DIN: 07557797)
Date of Birth November 24, 1953 March 5, 1964
Age 62 years 52 years
Nationality Indian Indian
Date of Appointment on | June 30, 1988 July 5, 2016
the Board
Qualification MBA from Wharton School of | HS.C
Business, PHD and OPM from
Harvard  University, = USA,
Industrial  Engineering  from
Mumbai University
Nature of Expertise in Management. Tours and Travels
specific functional area | Industry: Hotels, Tours and
Travels _
Experience Expertise in travel and tourism | Experience of more
industry. On the Board of the | than a decade in the
Company for more than 2|travel and tourism
' decades. industry.
Shareholding in the 10719* Nil
Company * of the above, 1079 shares are
held as a trustee of Shailendra
: Mittal Family Trust
List of Directorship held | -Trade Wings Hotels Limited Nil
in other Companies -Narayani Hospitality &
Academic Institution Private
Limited
-Trade Wings Infotech Limited
Terms and conditionsof | As given in Explanatory | As given in
appointment/re- Statement to Item no.5 Explanatory
appointment Staterment to Item no.6
Committee Membership | Nil Nil
Last Remuneration drawn| Rs. 2,50,000/- per month Nil
Remuneration to be Maximum of Rs. 5,00,000/- per | Nil
drawn after month as may be decided from
appointment/re- time to time
appointment
Relationship with He is not related to any other | She is not related to
Directors, Managers or Director or Manager or KMP any other Director or
other KMP Manager or KMP
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Number of Meeting of
Board attend during the
Year (For F.Y. 2015-16)

16

NA as appointment
was made on July 5,
2016 i.e FY 2016-17

Name of the Director

Ms. Beena Natubhai Barot
{DIN: 07326016)

Date of Birth July 6,1964.

Age 52 years

Nationality Indian

Date of Appointment on the Board November 5, 2015

Qualification Diploma in  Medical Laboratory
Technology

Nature of Expertise in specific functional | Tours and Travel related services

area

Experience Experience of more than 20 years in tours
and travel service industry.

Shareholding in the Company Nil

List of Directorship held in other Nil

Companies

Terms and conditions of
appointment/re-appointment

As given in Explanatory Statement to Item
no.8

Committee Membership Nil
Last Remuneration drawn Nil
Remuneration to be drawn after N.A
appointment/ re-appointment
Relationship with Directors, Managers or | She is not related to any other Director or
other KMP Manager or KMP
Number of Meeting of Board attend 5
during the Year (For F.Y. 2015-16)
By Order of the Board
For Trade Wings Limited
5d/-
Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00221661
Date: August 12, 2016 Address: 62-A, Mittal Bhavan,
Place: Mumbai Pedder Road,
Mumbai 400026

Registered Office:

6, Mascharenhas Building, M.G. Road,
Panaji, Goa - 403001

CIN: L63040GA1949PLC000168
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
Trade Wings Limited

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Sixty-Sixth Annual Report of the
Company and the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31,
201e.

1. Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company:
The financial highlights of the Company are given below. Kindly refer the financial

statements forming part of this report for detailed financial information:
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
Total Income 18,33,63,357 17,78,55,202
Total Expenditure 17,97,93,278 18,03,53,295
Profit/ (Loss) before Taxation 3,57,0079 (24,98,093)
Less: Provision for Taxation (14,77,143) (12,02,297)
Net Profit/ (Loss) after taxation 50,47,222 -12,95,796
Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet 50,47,222 -12,95,796

2. Brief description of the Company’s working during the year/State of Company’s
affair;

During the year under review your Company has achieved a turnover of Rs.
16,79,07,358 /- as compared to turnover of Rs. 15,65,95,194/- of previous year registering
increase in turnover by 7.22%. The total expenses of the Company during the reporting
period have decreased to Rs. 17,97,93,278/- from Rs. 18,03,53,295/- of the previous year.
During the year under review, there was net profit after tax of Rs. 50,47,222/- as
compared fo loss after tax of Rs. 12,95,796/- during the previous year.

The Company is running on the path of progress and profitability and is constantly
making efforts to enter the global market. Your Directors assure to keep the growth
momentum in coming years and strive for bright future for your Company.

3. Change in the nature of business, if any:

The Company is engaged in the business of travel and travel related services and also

doing Cargo business. There was no change in nature of business activity during the
year.
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4. Dividend:

In order to sustain growth and execute future plans, your Directors wish to conserve the
cash resources. Therefore they do not recommend any dividend on the Equity Shares for
the year under review.

5. Reserves:

The Company’s total Reserves are Rs. 3,76,92,177/- for the year under review as
compared to Rs. 3,28,06,152/- for the previous year.

6. Directors & Key Managerial Persons:

Mr. Vinayak S. Ubhayakar (DIN: 00221882), the former Managing Director and CEO of
the Company, passed away on May 1, 2016. The Board places on record the immense
contribution made by Late Mr. Vinayak S. Ubhayakar (DIN: 00221882), towards the
progress of the Company.

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of
Association of the Company, Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661), Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company, retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
being eligible, offers himself, for re-appointment pursuant to provision of Section 152 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Ms. Jyoti G. Gupta (DIN: 07139260), Non-Executive Non-Independent (Woman) Director
of the Company, tendered her resignation from the Board with effect from November 5,
2015. The Board accepted her resignation from November 5, 2015. The Board of
Directors, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in their
meeting held on November 5, 2015, had appointed Ms. Beena Natubhai Barot (DIN:
07326016) as an Additional Non-Independent Non-Executive (Woman) Director of the
Company, whose appointment was subject to approval of members in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. However, she could not devote time to the Company and due
to her pre-occupation elsewhere, she, resigned from the Board of the Company with
affect from June 10, 2016.

The Board of Directors, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, in their meeting held on September 29, 2015 have appointed Mr. Siddhanth
Nimbalkar (PAN: ARFPN2149H) as the Whole time Company Secretary (CS),
designated as Compliance Officer of the Company under the Listing Agreement and
termed as Whole-time Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company within the
meaning of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from October 1, 2015.

The Board of Directors, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, in their meeting held on May 30, 2016 have, subject to the approval of the
Members, designated Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) from Whole time Director
& CFO to Chairman and Managing Director of the Company for a period of three years
w.e.f. May 30, 2016 till May 29, 2019 in place of Late Mr. Vinayak 5. Ubhayakar (DIN:
00221882).

Further, on account of change in designation of Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661)

from Whole time Director & CFO to Chairman and Managing Director, the post of Chief
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Financial Officer was vacated and the Company was required to appoint a Chief
~ Financial Officer pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board of
Directors, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in their
meeting held on May 30, 2016 have appointed Mr. Vishwanathan Nair (PAN:
AEXPN2757E) as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and designated him as the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Further, the Board of Directors, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, in their meeting held on July 5, 2016 have appointed Mrs. Jacinta Bazil
Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) as an Additional Non-Executive (Woman) Director of the
Company, whose appointment shall be subject to approval of members in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The Company has received notice in writing from a Member
along with the requisite deposit under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing
the candidature of Mrs. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) as Non-Executive
(Woman) Director and the Board of Directors recommends her appointment. The
Company has also received the relevant declaration from Mrs. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam
(DIN: 07557797) that she is not disqualified to become a Director under the Companies
Act, 2013,

The Board recommends the appointment of Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661), as
Chairman and Managing Director and of Mrs. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797),
as Non-Executive (Woman) Director of the Company to the Members.

The Company has received declarations u/s 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 from all
the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet the criteria of
Independence as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has also
received Disclosure of Interest by Directors as per the provisions of Section 184 of
Companies Act, 2013,

The Company has a Policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board,
Committees and other individual Directors which include criteria for performance
evaluation of the non-executive directors and executive directors.

The Board and its Committees evaluations involved questionnaire-driven discussions
that covered a number of key areas / evaluation criteria inter alia the roles and
responsibilities, size and composition of the Board and its Committees, dynamics of the
Board and its Committees and the relationship between the Board and management. The
results of the reviews were discussed by the Board as a whole. Feedback was also sought
on the contributions of individual directors. Independent directors, at their Meeting,
conducted the performance review of the Chairman, Non-Independent Directors and the-
Board as a whole in respect of the financial year under review,

Formal Annual Evaluation was made in compliance with all the applicable provisions of
the Act. The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, which reflected the
overall engagement of the Board and its Committees with the Company.

The following policies of the Company are attached herewith marked as Annexure - 1:

a) Policy for selection of Directors and determining Directors independence; and
b) Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other

employees.
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Further, brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed/ re-appointed, relevant
information, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas, names of the
companies in which they hold directorships and the memberships/ chairmanships of
Committees of the Board and their shareholding in the Company, as stipulated under
Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and Secretarial Standards -2 have been furnished separately in the Notice
convening the 66t Annual General Meeting read with the Annexure thereto forming
part of this Report. '

7. Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies:

The Company currently has one Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company viz. Trade Wings
Hotels Limited.

Trade Wings Hotels Limited recorded a total income of Rs. 23,21,00,520/ - during the
financial year 2015-16. The Loss after tax stood at Rs. 6,30,056/- for the financial year
ended March 31, 2016.

Roopsangam Holdings Limited (Wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) was
amalgamated with Trade-Wings Limited vide amalgamation order dated April 18, 2015
passed by Bombay High Court. The effective date of the scheme of amalgamation was
June 4, 2015.

The Company did not have any Joint Venture or Associate Company during the year
under review.

As required pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, Form AOC-1 forms part of this report, marked as
Annexure-2.

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable accounting standard, the
audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are provided and form part
of the Report.

Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the details of
Loans/ Advances made to and investments made in the subsidiary have been furnished
in Notes forming part of the Accounts.

8. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report:

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the

Company, which occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company ie.
March 31, 2016 and the date of this report.

26




TRADE-WINGS LIMITED

SIXTY SIXTH ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

9. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s eperations in future:

During the year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s
operations in future.

The Company had filed an application with Goa bench of Bombay High Court for
obtaining dispensation in filing Company Scheme Petition in relation to amalgamation
of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company viz. Roopsangam Holdings Limited with the
Company. The Hon'ble High Court has granted the said dispensation vide its order
dated January 16, 2015. The final Order for amalgamation in Roopsangam Holdings
Limited was passed by Bombay High Court on April 18, 2015. The effective date of the
scheme of amalgamation was June 4, 2015, '

There were no other orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting
the going concern status of the Company and its operations in future.

10. Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements.

The Company has devised appropriate systems and framework for adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements commensurate with the size,
- scale and complexity of its operations including proper delegation of authority, policies
and procedures, effective IT systems aligned to business requirements, risk based
internal audit framework, risk management framework and whistle blower mechanism.

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the internal control system to ensure that it
remains effective and aligned with the business requirements. In case weaknesses are
identified as a result of the reviews, new procedures are put in place to strengthen
controls.

During the year under review, controls were tested and no reportable material weakness
in design and operations were observed. The Auditors also Report in their report on
adequacy of internal financial control.

11. Auditors and Audit Reports:
A) Statutory Auditors:

At the Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2014, M/s. Santosh Shah &
Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 121711W), were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for three consecutive financial year ie. till the
financial year 2016-17 who shall hold office till the conclusion of Annual General
Meeting to be held for the financial year 2016-17. In terms of the first proviso to Section
139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of the auditors shall be placed for
ratification at every Annual General Meeting. In this regard, the Company has received
a certificate from the auditors to the effect that if their appointment is ratified in ensuing
Annual General Meeting, it would be in accordance with the provisions of Section 141 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the ratification of appointment of M/s. Santosh

Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountamzs,7 as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
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for the financial year 2016-17, is recommended to the Members in ensuing Annual
General Meeting for their approval.

The Members are requested to ratify the appointment of the Statutory Auditors as
aforesaid and fix their remuneration.

There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the
auditor in their report and therefore, there are no further explanations to be provided for
in this Report.

B) Branch Auditors:

The Company has its branches in more than 30 cities in India. The members, in the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2015 had authorized
the Board of Directors to appoint Branch Auditors and to fix their remuneration.
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 143(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors had appointed Auditors for the purpose of Branch audit.

M./s. Ramesh P. Kunder & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No.
116218W), M./s. V.V Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration
No. 105110W), M/s. M.A. Shah & Co. Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm
Registration No. 112630W) and M/s. H.P. Goel & Co., Chartered Accountants, New
Delhi (Firm Registration No. 000749N) had been appointed by the Board as the Branch
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2013-16, to audit the various branches of
the Company.

The approval of the Members for appointment of Branch Auditors for the financial year
2016-17 and remuneration to be paid to them will also be taken up in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

C) Internal Auditors:

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company had re-constituted Internal Audit Department and
Mr. Vishwanathan Nair (PAN: AEXPN2757E), Manager - Accounts, was appointed as
the head of Internal Audit Department of the Company.

In the Board meeting held on May 30, 2016, Mr. Vishwanathan Nair (PAN:
AEXPN2757E), was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hence, the
Board appointed Mr. Arun Gawankar, as the head of Internal Audit Department of the
Company with effect from May 30, 2016, in place of Mr.Vishwananthan Nair.

D) Secretarial Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board had
appointed M/s. Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, to
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2015-16 and issue
Secretarial Audit Report. Secretarial Audit Report issued by M/ s.Hemanshu Kapadia &
Associates for the financial year 2015-16 in Form MR-3 forms part of this report and
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marked as Annexure -3. The replies from the Board on the remarks/ qualifications of the

Secretarial Auditors are as under:

Sr.
No.

Remarks/ Qualifications
Secretarial Auditor

by

Management reply

1. | The Company has appointed a
Whole time Company Secretary with
effect from October 1, 2015.

The Company was searching for the
suitable person to be appointed as whole
time Company Secretary of the Company
for which it has given advertisement in
newspapers. The Company could find a
suitable candidate only in September,
2015 and appointed him as whole time
Company Secretary w.e.f. October 1, 2015.

2. | The Company could not submit the
Limited Review Report for the
quarter ended June 30, 2015 to BSE
Limited, as required ' pursuant to
Clause 41 (I)(c)(i) of the Listing
Agreement.

The Company had submitted the un-
audited financial results for the quarter
ended June 30, 2015. The Company had
complied the same effective from the
quarter ended September 30,2015 and
submitted Limited Review Report for all

the subsequent quarters.

12. Extract of the Annual Return:

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the Annual
Return in Form MGT - 9 is annexed to the Directors’ Report and marked as Annexure- 4.

13. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo:

The information as per Section 134(3){(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 with respect to conservation of energy, technology
absorption & foreign exchange earnings and outgo are given in Annexure-5 forming
part of this report.

14. Details of Committees of the Board:

Currently the Board has 3 Committees: the Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders” Relationship Committee. The Composition
of various committees and compliances, are as per the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 along with the Rules made there under. Brief details of various
Committees are provided in this report. :

15. Audit Committee Composition:

The Board has an Audit Committee in conformity with the provisions of Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013 which comprises of three Independent Directors. After the
appointment of Mr. Siddhanth Nimbalkar as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
of the Company, he was appointed as secretary of the Committee in place of Mr.
Vinayak S. Ubhayakar w.ef. October 1, 2015. Mr. Vinayak S. Ubhayakar (DIN:
00221882), the former Managing Director of the Company, ceased to be a member of the
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Audit Committee due to his demise on May 1, 2016 and Mr. A.G. Merchant (DIN
05228186), Independent Director of the Company was appointed as a member in the
Audit Committee. The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Name Designation | Non-Executive/ Independent
Mr. R. Vaidyanathan (DIN: 02318827) Chairman Non-Executive, Independent
Mr. Rajan Dani (DIN: 00221927) Member Non-Executive, Independent
Mr. A.G. Merchant (DIN 05228186) .

w.e.f May 30, 2016 Member Non-Executive, Independent

All the members of the Audit committee are financially literate and have accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

All the major steps impacting the financials of the Company are undertaken only after
the consultation of the Audit Committee.

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company had accepted all
the recommendations of the Audit Committee.

16. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Board has Nomination and Remuneration Committee in conformity with the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The composition of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows:

Name Designation | Non-Executive/ Independent
Mr. R. Vaidyanathan (DIN: 02318827) | Chairman | Non-Executive, Independent
Mr. Rajan Dani (DIN: 00221927) Member Non-Executive, Independent
Mr. A.G. Merchant (DIN 05228186) Member Non-Executive, Independent

The appointment of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel is recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee to the Board. Your Company has devised the
Nomination Policy for the appointment of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) of the Company who have ability to lead the Company towards achieving
sustainable development. The Company has also framed Policy relating to the
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. A copy of
the policy is appended as Annexure - 1 to the Report.

17. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

The Company has always valued its investors and stakeholders. In order to ensure the
proper and speedy redressal of shareholders’/ investors’ complaints, the Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee was constituted. The role of the Committee is to consider and
resolve securities holders’ complaint and to approve/ratify transfer of securities. The
constitution and terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is in
conformity with the provisions of Section 179(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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The Composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is as follows:

Name Designation | Non-Executive/Independent
Mr. Rajan Dani (DIN: 00221927) Chairman Non-Executive, Independent
Mr. R. Vaidyanathan (DIN: 02318827) Member Non-Executive, Independent

18. Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at work place (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company has Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Work Place and also
constituted Internal Complaint Committee to mvestlgate any complaint received on
“sexual harassment.

The Company has not received any complaints pertaining to sexual harassment during
the financial year 2015-16.

19. Details of establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees:

The Vigil Mechanism of the Company provides Directors and Employees to report their
concerns and has also taken steps to safeguard any person using this mechanism from
victimization and in appropriate and exceptional cases, there is direct access to approach
Mr. R. Vaidhyanathan (DIN 02318827), Chairman of the Audit Committee. Protected
disclosures can be made by a whistle blower through an e-mail, or dedicated telephone
line or a letter to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Policy on vigil mechanism
may be accessed on the Company’s  website at the link
http:/ / www.tradewings.in/ downloads/ Vigil-Mechanism-Policy.pdf

20. Number of meetings of the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors met Sixteen (16) times during the Financial Year 2015-16. The
intervening gap between any two meetings was not more than 120 days as prescribed by
the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, as required under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the meeting of the
Independent Directors of the Company was held on February 12, 2016 and all the
Independent Directors of the Company were present at the meeting.

21, Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186:

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided
as covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, are provided in the standalone
financial Statements which form part of this report.

22, Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:
The Company, during the year, has not entered into any transaction, as specified under
section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, with related parties. Accordingly, the

disclosure of Related Party Transactions to be provided under section 134(3)(h) of the
Companies Act, 2013, in Form AOC ~ 2 is not applicable. ‘
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The related party transactions/disclosures are provided in the standalone financial
Statements which form part of this report.

23. Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

As stipulated under section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013, your Directors hereby state and confirm that:

| a) In preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31,
2016, the applicable accounting standards had been followed and there are no
mat_erial departures from the same;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2016 and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on
that date;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern” basis;

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are
operating effectively during the financial year ended March 31, 2016; and

f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively during the financial year ended March 31, 2016.

24. Managerial Remuneration:

The information required to be disclosed with respect to the remuneration of Directors
and KMP’s in the Directors’ Report pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel} Rules, 2014, is set out as an Annexure - 6 to this Report.

The names of top ten employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn as
required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is set
out as an Annexure - 6 to this Report. However, there was no employee in the Company
drawing remuneration in excess of limit specified in Rule 5(2)(i) to (iii) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 hence, no such
details are provided.
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25. Risk Management:

The Company’s robust risk management framework identifies and evaluates all the risks
that the organization faces such as strategic, financial, credit, market, liquidity, security,
property, legal, regulatory, reputational and other risks. The Company recognises that
these risks need to be managed and mitigated to protect its shareholders and other
stakeholders, to achieve its business objectives and enable sustainable growth. The risk
‘framework is aimed at effectively mitigating the Company’s various business and
operational risks, through strategic actions. Risk management is integral part of our
critical business activities, functions and processes. The risks are reviewed for the
change in the nature and extent of the major risks identified since the last assessment. [t
also provides control measures for risks and future action plans.

The Company believes that the overall risk exposure of present and future risks remains
within risk capacity.

26. Corporate Social Responsibility:

It is the Company’s continuous endeavor to discharge its liability as a corporate citizen
of India. As the Company does not fulfill the criteria specified under Section 135(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, it has not constituted CSR Committee or formulated CSR
Policy or made expenditure towards CSR activities during the reporting period. Further,
the Company was also not required to mention in the Board’s Report details as required
under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under hence, no
such details are given in this Report.

27. Management Discussion and Analysis:

As required under Regulation 34 read with Schedule V (B} of SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, report on “Management Discussion
and Analysis” is attached as Annexure - 7 and forms a part of this Report.

28. Other Disclosures / Reporting:

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the
following items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under
review: .

a) Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

b) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

c) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under
any scheme.

d) Details of payment of remuneration or commission to Managing Director or Joint
Managing Director of the Company from any of its subsidiaries as the Company as
no such payment was made.

e) Voting rights which are not directly exercised by the employees in respect of shares
for the subscription/ purchase of whicg loan was given by the Company (as there is
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no scheme pursuant to which such persons can beneficially hold shares as envisaged
under section 67(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013).

29, Acknowledgements:

Your Directors express their deep gratitude for the co-operation and support extended
to the Company by its Members, customers, suppliers, bankers and various government
agencies. Your Directors also place on record the commitment and involvement of the
employees at all levels and looks forward to their continued co-operation.

For Trade Wings Limited

Sd/-

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00221661

Address: 62-A, Mittal Bhavan, Pedder Road, Mumbai - 400026

Date: August 12, 2016
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE-1

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
[Under Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013]

PREAMBLE

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement, the Board of Directors of every Listed Company shall constitute the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Company had already constituted
Remuneration Committee comprising of three Non-executive Independent Directors as
required under the Listing Agreement.

In order to align with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and amended Listing
Agreement from time to time, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 12 April,
2014 changed the nomenclature of Remuneration Committee as ‘Nomination and
Remuneration Committee” comprising of three Non-executive Independent Directors as
members of the Committee. The members of the Remuneration Committee continue to
be the members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

This Committee and the policy are formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement, if applicable.

OBJECTIVE

The Key objectives of the Committee would be:
1) To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.
2) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary
report to the Board for further evaluation.
3) To recommend to the Board on remuneration payable to the Directors, Key.
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

DEFINITIONS

1) “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

2) “Company” means “Trade-Wings Limited”. :

3) “Employees’ Stock Option” means the option given to the directors, officers or
employees of a Company or of its Holding Company or Subsidiary Company or
Companies, if any, which gives such Directors, officers or employees, the benefit
or right to purchase, or to subscribe for, the shares of the Company at a future
date at a pre-determined price.

4) “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

5) “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means

a. Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager,

Company Secretary, '

Whole-Time Director,

Chief Financial Officer and .

Such other officer as may be prescribed.

LI =N~
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6)

9)

“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of the
Board of Directors of the Company, constituted in accordance with the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement.
“Policy” means “Nomination and Remuneration Policy”.

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any
person for services rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under
the Income-Tax Act, 1961.

“Senior Management” means personnel of the Company who are members of its
core management team excluding Board of Directors. This would include all
members of management one level below the executive directors, including all
the functional heads.

INTERPRETATION

Terms that have not been defined in this Policy shall have the same meaning assigned to
them in the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Agreement and / or any other SEBI
Regulations as amended from time to time.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES

This policy ensures that

1)

The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company
successfully.

2) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks and

3) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long
term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its
goals.

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The role of the Committee inter-alia will be the following:

1)

To formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director.

Formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.
Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be
appointed in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down in
this policy.

To carry out evaluation of every Director’s Performance.

To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and
Senior Management.

To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

Ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient,
relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks.

To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time
and / or enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as
may be applicable.

To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the
performance of its duties. 36
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MEMBERSHIP

1) The Committee shall comprise of atleast three (3) Directors, all of whom shall be
non-executive Directors and at least half shall be Independent.

2) The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required to comply
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable statutory
requirement.

3) Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee
meeting.

4) Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

5) Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of
Directors.

CHAIRMAN

1) The Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director.

2) Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee
but shall not chair the Committee.

3) In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the
meeting shall choose one amongst them to act as Chairman.

4) Chairman of the Committee could be present at the Annual General Meeting or
may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTEREST

1) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own
remuneration is discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being
evaluated.

2) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be
present at the meetings of the Committee.

VOTING

1) Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a
majority of votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for
all purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee.

2} In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting

vote,

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT '

A. Appointment criteria and qualifications:

1) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification,

expertise and experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or
at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her
appointment. '
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2)

3)

A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for
the position he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has
discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience
possessed by a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person
as Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Manager who has attained
the age of Seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this
position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval
of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory
statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification
for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

B. Term/Tenure:

1)

2)

The Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Manager (Managerial
Person):

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managerial
Person for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall
be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

Independent Director:

i. - An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five

consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-
appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and
disclosure of such appointment in the Board’s Report.

ii. No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive

terms, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment
after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director.
Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of
three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any
other capacity, either directly or indirectly. However, if a person who has
already served as an Independent Director for 5 years or more in the
Company as on 1st October, 2014 or such other date as may be determined
by the Committee as per regulatory requirement, he / she shall be eligible
for appointment for one more term of 5 years only.

iii. At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured
that number of Boards on which such Independent Director serves is
restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three
listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is
serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed Company.

C. Evaluation:

The Committee may carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP
and Senior Management at regular interval (yearly).

38




TRADE-WINGS LIMITED

SIXTY SIXTH ANNUAL REPORT 2015 - 2016

D.

Removal:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act 2013,
rules made thereunder or any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the

- Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing,

removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions and
compliance of the Act, rules and regulations.

Retirement:

The Director, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company.
The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior
Management in the same position / remuneration or otherwise even after
attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSON,
KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

A.

General:

1) The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to Managerial Person,
KMP and Senior Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee
and recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration /
compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the prior / post approval of
the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, whenever
required.

- 2) The remuneration and commission to be paid to managerial person shall be as

per the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made
~ thereunder for the time being in force.

3) Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be
recommended by the Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs
approved by the shareholders in the case of Managerial Person. Increments
will be effective from the date of re-appointment in respect of Managerial
person and 15t April in respect of other employees of the Company.

Remuneration to Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management:

1) Fixed Pay:

Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management shall be eligible for a
monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the
recommendation of the Committee in accordance with the Statutory provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder for the time being
in force. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of the perquisites
including, employer’s contribution to P. F., pension scheme, medical expenses,
club fees, etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the
recommendation of the Committee and approved by the shareholders and
Central Government, wherever required.
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2)

3)

Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Managerial Person in
accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and
if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the prior approval of the
Central Government.

Provisions for excess remuneration:

If any managerial person draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of
remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government,
where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and until
such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not
waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central
Government.

C. Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Remuneration / Commission:

The remuneration / commission shall be in accordance with the statutory
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the
time being in force.

Sitting Fees: -

The Non - Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by
way of fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided
that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as
provided in the Companies Act, 2013, per meeting of the Board or Committee
or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to
time. '

Limit of Remuneration / Commission:

Remuneration / Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved
by the shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1 % of the net profits of
the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

Stock Options:
An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the
Company.

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING:

Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the said
meeting or the Chairman of the next succeeding meeting. Minutes of the Committee
meeting will be tabled at the subsequent Board and Committee meeting.

DEVIATIONS FROM THIS POLICY:

Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed
necessary in the interests of the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to
do so in an individual case.

40



TRADE-WINGS LIMITED

SIXTY SIXTH ANNUAL REPORT 2015 - 2016

ANNEXURE -2

Form AOC-1

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

associate companies or joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary is presented with amounts in Rupees)

Sr. L Trade-Wings
No. Name of the subsidiary Hotels Limited
1 The ‘date since when subsidiary was March 30, 1993
acquired
| Reporting .perllod for the sub51d15':1ry Same as of Trade
2. concerned, if different from the Holding . . .
, . ; Wings Limited
Company’s reporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as
3. on the last date of the relevant Financial Not Applicable
year in the case of Foreign Subsidiaries
4, Share capital 99,00,200
5. Reserves & surplus -14,99,49,014
6. Total assets 23,02,06,795
7. Total Liabilities 23,02,06,795
8. Investments 6,50,100
9. Turnover 23,08,36,737
10. Profit before taxation 8,63,107
11. Provision for taxation -14,93,163
12. Profit after taxation -6,30,056
13. Proposed Dividend Nil
14. Extent of shareholding 100%
Notes:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Not Applicable

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year:
Roopsangam Holdings Limited (wholly owned subsidiary company) was
amalgamated with Trade-Wings Limited vide amalgamation order dated
April 18, 2015 passed by Bombay High Court.The effective date of the scheme
of amalgamation is June 4, 2015. 41
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to
Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Not applicable as the Company did not have any Associate Company or Joint
Venture during the reporting period.

For Trade Wings Limited

Sd/-

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00221661

Address: 62-A, Mittal Bhavan, Pedder Road, Mumbai 400026

Date: August 12, 2016
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE - 3

HEMANSHU KAPADIA & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Office No. 12, 14t Floor, Navjivan Society, Building No.3
Lamington Road, Mumbai-400 008

Tel 6631 0888/6631 4830

E-mail: hemanshu@hkacs.com

Website: hkacs.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial year ended March 31, 2016
{Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014}
To, ,
The Members,
Trade-Wings Limited
CIN: L63040G A1949PLCO000168
6, Mascharenhas Building, M. G. Road,
Panaji, Goa-403001

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Trade-Wings Limited
(hercinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2016 (“the audit period”) complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance - mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2016,

according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under (including the
applicable provisions of Companies Act, 1956 in force during the Audit period);

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA”) and the rules made there under;
3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

4. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
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External Commercial Borrowings (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
period as there were no Foreign Direct Investments in the Company, Overseas Direct
Investments by Company and no External Commercial Borrowings were made by the
Company);

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act'):-

a.

b.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992 (May 14, 2015);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 (with effect from May 15, 2015);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
period as the Company has not issued any new Securities);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not Applicable to the Company
during the Audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period as the
Company has not issued any Debt instruments/Securities);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period as delisting of
securities did not take place); and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period as the Company has not
bought back its securities);

6. The following industry specific laws and regulations, as informed and certified by the
Audit Committee of the Company which are specifically applicable to the Company:

a. Memorandum of Instructions to Authorised Money Changers (AMCs) issued vide A.

P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 43 dated November 12, 2002 as amended from time to
time relating to Full Fledge Money Changer business.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards (S5-1 and S5-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India. ,

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited for a period
from April 1, 2015 till November 30, 2015 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during the period
December 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016;

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except to the
extent as mentioned below:

1. The Company has appointed a Whole time Company Secretary with effect from October 1, 2015.
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2. The Company could not submit the Limited Review Report for the quarter ended June 30, 2015 to
BSE Limited, as required pursuant to Clause 41 (INc)(i) of the Listing Agreement.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

As per the documents submitted to us, the notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance (except in cases where meeting was called at shorter notice), and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting,.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions
of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. Further, as
confirmed by the management, mechanism to capture and record the dissenting members’
views as a part of the minutes, exist. :

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has passed following
resolution through Postal Ballot, results of which was declared on August 25, 2015,

a) To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company or Committee thereof pursuant to
Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 to sell, lease, mortgage or otherwise dispose
of the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking(s), the movable and
immovable properties of the Company both present or future for an amount not’
exceeding the overall borrowing limits prescribed u/s 180 (1)(c) from time to time.

b) To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to grant loan or give guarantee or
provide security in respect of the loans under section 186 of the Company Act, 2013 for
an amount not exceeding Rs.80 crores.

We further report that during the audit period there was no instance of
i. Public/Rights/Preferential issue of shares / debentures/sweat equity.
ii. Redemption / buy-back of securities,
iii. Merger /reconstruction.
iv. Foreign Technical Collaborations. _
For Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates,
Practising Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Hemanshu Kapadia
Proprietor

Date: August 12, 2016 C.P. No.: 2285

Place: Mumbai ' Membership No.: F3477

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.
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To,

Annexure A

The Members,

Trade Wings Limited

CIN: L63040G A1949PLC000168

6 Mascharenhas Building, M. G. Road,
Panaji, Goa-403001

Our report of even date is to be read along with the letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates,
Practising Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Hemanshu Kapadia
Proprietor

C. P. No. 2285
Membership No. F3477

Date: August 12, 2016
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE -4

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on March 31, 2016
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management & Administration } Rules, 2014

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS

i CIN L63040GA1949PLC000168

il Registration Date November 29, 1949

fii | Name of the Company Trade Wings Limited

i Category/Sub-category of the Company Limited by shares/ Indian Non
Company Government Company

Address of the Registered office

6, Mascharenhas Building, M.G. Road, Panaji,
Goa - 403001

& contact details Telephone: 0832 2435166
E-mail: companysecy@twltravel.com
vi | Whether listed company Yes

vii

| Name , Address & contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Bigshare Services Private Limited

E-2 & 3, Ansa Industrial Estate, Saki~-Vihar
Road, Sakinaka, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400 072
Telephone No: 022 40430200

E-mail: investor@bigshareonline.com

Fax: 022 4043 0251

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company

shall be stated
SL Name & Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
No products/services Product fservice of the company
1 | Travel Agency activities 79110 92.88%

- I PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

3 0,
51 | Name & Address of the | (o gﬁ;ﬁ:ﬂg@ oof Applicable
No | Company / Associate | Held Section
Narayani Hospitality and
Academic Institution '
Private Limited Holdin, :
1 | 18/20, K Dubash Marg, | U65910MH1987PTC042725 Comp afty 7461%|  2(46)
Kalaghoda, Fort, Mumbai
- 400023
Trade Wings Hotels
Limited . Subsidi :
2 | 6, Mascharenhas Building, | U55101GA1989PLC000966 Clc:m Y1 100% 2(87)(ii)
M.G. Road, Panaji, Goa - pany
403001
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IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Eqﬁity)

. (i) Category Wise Shareholding :

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the | No. of Shares held at the end of the year |7 Shange

Category of Shareholders year {April1, 201g15 ) s (March 31, 2016) ¥ t::ﬂns

year

. Y of % of Total
Demat | Physical | Total | Total Demat | Physical | Total |'cb Tk
Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual /HUF 9640 0 9640 0.32 9640 0 9640 0.32 0
bg:;“g:‘]f""""’ 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
¢} Bodies Corporates 2234341 4000 | 2238341 7461 | 2738341 0 [ 2238341 74.61 0
d)} Bank/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
¢) Any Other (Trust) 0 1079 1079 0.04 0 1079 1079 0.04 0
SUB TOTAL (A) (1): 2243981 5079 | 2249060 7497 | 2247981 1079 { 2249060 74.97 0
2) Foreign

2} NRI- Indivicuals 0 0 0 0.00: 0 0 0 0.00 0
b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
¢) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
d) Banks/FI i 0 [} 0.00 0 [§ [} 0.00 [}
¢} Any other... 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
SUB TOTAL (A) (2% 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
Total Shareholding of
Promoters 2243981 5079 | 2249060 7497 | 2247981 1079 | 2249060 74.97 0
(A= (A)1)+H{A)(R)
B. PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDING
(1} Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 ¢ 0 0 0.00 0
¢) Venture Capital Fund 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
) FIIS 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
h) Foreign Venture
éapimgé‘un o 0 0 o| o 0 0 ol o0 0
1) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
SUB TOTAL (B){1): 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
(2) Non Institutions ‘
a) Bodies corporates .
i) Indian 3027 619051 622078 20.74 2906 | 619051 | 621957 2073 | -0.004
if) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 4]
b) Individuals :
i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share 29994 63412 93406 an 31880 61547 93427 311 | o0.0007
capital upto Rs.1 lakhs
i) Individual _
sharcholders holdin
nominal share capitag.l in 3539 0 35396 1,18 35496 4] 35496 118 | 0.0033
excess of Rs. 1 lakhs
¢} Others (Specify)
¢-i) Clearing Member 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
c-ii) NRY 60 0 60 0.00 60 0 60 0.00 0
c-iif) Director 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0
c-iv) OCB 0 i 0 0.0 0 0 [i] 0.00 0
SUB TOTAL (B)2): 68477 | 682463 | 750940 | 2508 | 70340 | 680598 | 750040 | 2503 0
Total Public Shareholding
(B)= B)()*+(B)2) 68477 682463 750940 25.03 70342 680598 750940 25.03 0
C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs & 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 6 0.00 0
ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 2312458 687542 | 3000000 100.00 | 2318323 681677 | 3000000 100.00 0.00
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

‘o change
Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end of | f}“l‘lfe
of the year (April 1, 2015) the year (March 31, 2016) dourin gg
S1 Shareholders the year
No. Name %% of total % (;f ;ha;es % of total % (;f ghazes
No. of shares ple ie d No.of | shares pe %e
shares of the en:::;t:lre shares | " of the en::f;t::e
company | o company | .. o
Narayani
Hospitality &
1 | Academic 2238341 | 7461 0 2238341 | 74,61 0 0.00
Institution
Private Limited |
Shailendra
2 | Parmeshwarji 9640 032 0 9640 032 0 0.00
Mittal
Shailendra
3 | Mittal Family 1079 0.04 0 1079 0.04 0 C0.00
Trust
Total 2249060 74.97 g 2249060 | 74.97 0 0.00
(iii) Change in promoters' shareholding ( specify if there is no change)
; Cumulative
bSh.arel.loldmg at the Shareholding during
eginning of the Year . H
(April 1, 2015) Increasef| the year (April 1, 2015
s1. Name of Promoters prit % Decrease| _to March 31, 2016)
No. % of total |in No. of % of total
No.of | sharesof | Shares | No.of shares
Shares the Shares of the
: - | company company
1 | Narayani Hospitality & Academic Institution Private Limited
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 | 2238341 | 7461 | | |
Date wise Increase/Decrease in I .
Promoters shareholding during the year No ge during the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 2238341 | 7a61 | o0 | 22383m1 | 7ae1
2 | Shailendra Parmeshwarji Mittal
At the beginning of the year-01.042015 | 9640 | 032 | | ]
Date wise Increase/ Decrease in No ch during th
Promoters shareholding during the year 0 change curing the year _
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 9640 | 032 | o | 90 [ o032
3 | Shailendra Mittal Family Trust
At the beginning of the year- 01042015 | 1079 | 004 | | [
-Date wise Increase/Decrease in .
Promoters shareholding during the year No change during the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 1079 | o004 | o [ 7 [ oos
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(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders
of GDRs & ADRs) :
Sl. | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders | Shareholding atthe | Increase Cumulative
No beginning of the /Decrease | Shareholding during
Year (April 1,2015) | inNo.of | theyear (Aprill, 2015
Shares to Maich 31, 2016)
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of Shares shares of
the the
company company
1_| Benjo Holdings Private Limited
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 | 187736 | 6.26 | | |
Date wise Increase/Decrease in No ch during th
shareholding during the year 0 change curing the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 187736 | 6.26 | | 187736 | 6.26
2 | Sagarknya Investment and Finance Private Limited
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 | 184525 | 6.15 | I l
Date wise Increase/Decrease in .
shareholding durin/g the year No change during the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 184525 | 6.15 | | 184525 | 6.15
3 | Vishwadeep Investment and Finance Private Limited
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 | 181870 | 6.06 | | |
Date wise Increase/Decrease in :
shareholding durin/g the year No change during the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 181870 | 6.06 | | 181870 | 6.06
4 | Vishwabharti Holdings Private Limited
At the beginning of the year - (01.04.2015 64320 | 2,14 | | |
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Noch during th
shareholding during the year 0 change curing the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 64320 | 214 | | 64320 | 2.14
5 | Urmila Ramgopal Agarwal
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 35496 1.18
Increase on January 29, 2016 1640 37136 1.24
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 37136 1.24 37136 1.4
6 | Harsha Jaykant Bhatt
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 3000 0.10
Decrease onMarch 31, 2016 =3000 0 0.00
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 0 0.00 0 0.00
7 | Hemlata Vikas Bhansali
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 2812 0.09
Increase on November 20, 2015 1500 4312 0.14
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 4312 0.14 4312 0.14
8 | Kishorilal Mohanlal Bhansali
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 2150 0.07
Decrease due to transfer on November
20, 2015 -2150 0 0.00
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 ¢ 0.00 0 0.00
9 | Mahindra Holdings Limited
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 2090 | 0.07 | | [
Date wise Increase/Decrease in .
shareholding durin/g the year No change during the year
At the end of the year - 31.08.2016 2090 | 0.07 | | 2090 | 0.07
10 | Suresh Mittal .
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 1720 | 0.06 | | |
Date wise Increase/Decrease in .
shareholding durin/g the year _ No change during the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 1720 | 0.06 | | 1720 | 0.06
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11 | Nainesh Jayant Bhatt
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 1000 0.03
Increase on March 31, 2016 : 3000 4000 0.13
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 4000 0.13 4000 0,13
12 | Rajal Rinesh Bhansali
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 894 0.03
Increase on November 20, 2015 850 1744 0.06
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 1744 0.06 1744 0.06

(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP

* Details of the persons who were the Directors & KMP of the Company as on March 31, 2016

have been mentioned.
Cumulative
Shareholding at the : Shareholding during
beginning of the Year | Increase/ the year
Sl . {April 1, 2015) Decrease {April 1, 2015
No For Ea,:h of the Directors & KMP inNo. of | toMarch 31, 2016)
% of total Shares % of total
gl:’a'r: shares of the ;:);r:fs shares of the
" | company company
1 Vinayak S. Ubhayakar (Managing Director and CEQ)
* Ceased to be on the Board with effect from May 1, 2016 due to his demise
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 ¢ | 000 | | |
Increase/decrease during the year No change during the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 0 | 0 | [ o [ o000
2 | Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal {(Chairman, WTD and CFQ)* _
At the beginning of the year-01.04.2015 | 10719 [ 036 | I 0 | o000
Increase/ decrease during the year No change during the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 10719 | 036 |- [ 10719 T 036
*Of the above mentioned shares, 1079 shares are held as a Trustee of Shailendra Mittal Family Trust
3 | R.Vaidyanathan (Independent Director)
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 0 [ oo0 1 [ |
Increase/ decrease during the year No change during the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 0 | 0 | [0 [ o000
| 4 | Rajan Dani {Independent Directar)
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 0o | o000 T -] |
Increase/decrease during the year No change during the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 0 | 000 | i 0o | 000
5 | A.G.Merchant (Independent Director) :
At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 0 | 000 ] | |
Increase/ decrease during the year No change during the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 0 | 0 | [ o ] o000

Beena Barot (Additional Non-Executive Non Independent Director)
* Resigned as Additional Non-Executive Non Independent Director with effect from June 10, 2016

At the beginning of the year - 01.04.2015 0 | 000 ] !
Increase/decrease during the year No change during the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 0 | 000 ] [ 6 T 000
7 | Siddhanth Nimbalkar (Company Secretary and Compliance officer)
At the beginning of the vear - 01.04.2015 0 | o000 | | |
Increase/decrease during the year No change during the year
At the end of the year - 31.03.2016 0 | 000 ] | o ] o000
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V  INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

ayment
Secured Loans| Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year (1.4.2015)
i) Principal Amount 113516870} 18200141 0 131717011
i) Interest due but not paid 383320 0 0 383320
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 113900190 18200141 0 132100331
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
Additions 1171278383 10857609 0 1182135992
Reduction 1182417528 30565347 0 1212982875
Net Change 11139145 19707738 -0 30846883
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year (31.3.2016)
i) Principal Amount 124677857 37907879 0 162585736
ii) Interest due but not paid 361478 0 0 361478
iji) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 12503933 37907879 0 162947214,
vl REMUNERATION OF DIRECTCORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:
Sl . .
No Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager
. Vinayak S. Total
D.r. Shallendra.P. Ubha);akar Amount
1 Gross salary Mittal (Whole-time .
Director) (Mfinaglng
Director)
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 3000000 180012 3180012
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 0 0 0
Income tax Act, 1961
(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 0 0 0
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 Btock option 0 0 0
3 Bweat Equity 0 0 0
4 Commission 0 0 0
las % of profit 0 0 0
others (specify) 0 0 0
5 Others, please specify 0 0 0
[Total {A) 3000000 180012 3180012
Ceiling as per the Act The remuneration calculated as per Section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013 is inadequate.
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Remuneration is paid as per Schedule V, Part II,
Section II (A) (ii) i.e. upto the limit of Rs.

42,00,000/-
B. Remuneration to other directors:
SL. Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total
No Amount
1 : R, . . AG.
Independent Directors Vaidyanathan Rajan Dani Merchant
a) Fee for attendin
gard /committee mgeetings 0 0 530000 0
(b) Commission 0 0 0 0
(c) Others, please specify 0 0 0 0
Total (1) 0 0 530000 530000
Jyoti Gupta Beena Barot
2 | Other Non Executive Directors | (upto November 5, (w.e.f November 5,
2015) 2015)
(a) Fee for attending 0 0 0
board/committee meetings
{b) Commission 0 0 0
(c } Others (Professional fees) 196000 266570 462570
Total (2) 462570
Total (B)=(1+2) 992570
Total Managerial Remuneration 3180012
Overall Ceiling as per the Act No remuneration was paid to the Non-Executive
Directors during the finacial year 2015-16

€. Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than /MD/Manager/WTD
I\SJ:;. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel A;tg:]nt
Siddhanth
Nimbalkar,
. Vinayak S. | Company
Dr. Shailendra
1 Gross Sal . Ubhayakar, | Secret
ay P. Mittal, CFO cgo (w.e.“f‘y
October1,
2015)
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the 3000000 180012 150000 3330012
Income Tax Act, 1961 '
(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 0 0 0 0
of the Income Tax Act, 1961
{c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) of the Income Tax 0 0 0 ]
Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option 0 0 0 0
3 | Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0
4 | Commission 0 0 0 0
- as % of profit 0 0 0 0
- others, specify 0 0 0 0
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5 [ Others 0 0 0
Total 3000000 180012 150000 3330012
vi PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Details of
, . Penaity/Punish| Authority [Appeal made
Section of the Brief ) .
Type , ., ment/Compou [(RD/NCLT/Co| if any (give
Companies Actf Description nding fees urt) details)
imposed

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding

I I I
B. DIRECTORS

I |
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

I |
Penalty .
Punishment NIL
Compounding
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ANNEXURE-5

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo

(Pursuant to provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

A. Energy Conservation:

1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

Your Company is in service industry and not having manufacturing activity. Your
Company has always considered energy and natural resource conservation as a focus
area and has been consciously making efforts towards its conservation. Even though the
operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the Company on continuous basis
takes measures for conservation of power.

Your Company has taken several sustainable steps voluntarily to contribute towards
‘better environment. Select few steps/impact are listed below:

a) Use of natural Lightning and natural ventilation
b) Use of energy efficient electric equipment
¢) Educating employees and workers for energy conservation

2. The steps taken by the Company for utilising Alternate Sources of Energy:

The Company is using electricity as main source of its energy requirement and does not
have any alternate source of energy.

3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:
For the year under review, there was no investment in energy conservation equipments.

B. Technology Absorption:

1. The efforts made towards technology absorption:

The Company evaluates the best available technology for improving its performance
and quality of its service operations.

2. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution:

The Company has not absorbed/ made any new technology during the year.
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3. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned
from the beginning of the financial year):

No technology was imported during the three years preceding to the year under report.
4, Expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

Nil

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo:

The total Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo in terms of actual inflow and out flow
during the year was as follows:

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Financial year 2015-16 Financial year 2014-15
Foreign Exchange inflow Nil Nil
Foreign Exchange outflow 2,19,560 3,71,693

For Trade Wings Limited

Sd/-

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00221661
Address: 62-A, Mittal Bhavan, Pedder Road, Mumbai 400026

Date: August 12, 2016
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE-6
DETAILS OF REMUNERATION

A. Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1)
of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

i.  The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the Company for the financial year 2015-16 and the percentage increase in
remuneration of each Director during the Financial Year 2015-16 are as under:

Sr. | Name and Designation Remuneration | % Increase in | Ratio
No. (in Rs.) Remuneration
in the Financial
Year 2015-16
1. | Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal* Rs. 30,00,000/- | - 13.53:1
{Chairman, WTD and CFO)
2, Mr. Vinayak 5. Ubhyayar# Rs. 1,80,012/- | - 0.811:1
{(Managing Director and CEQO)
3. | Mr. Rajan Dani NIL NA NA
(Independent Director)
4. | Mr. A.G. Merchant Rs. 5,30,000/- | NA 2.39:1
(Independent Director)
5. | Mr. R. Vaidyanathan NIL NA NA
{Independent Director)
6. | Ms. Beena Barot" NIL NA- NA
(Non-Executive Woman Director)
7. | Mr. Siddhanth Nimbalkar Rs. 1,50,000/- | NA NA
(Company Secretary)
{w.e.f October 1, 2015)

Note: The details of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March 31,

2016 are been mentioned in the above table.

* Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal was designated as Chairman and Managing Director w.e.f. May 30,

2016.

# Mr. Vinayak S. Ubhyayar ceased to be Managing Director and CEQ, due to his death on May 1,
- 2016.

~ Ms. Beena Barot resigned as the Non-Executive (Woman) Director of the Company w.e.f June

10, 2016.

ii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial
Year:

In the Financial Year 2015-16, there was an increase of 2.03% in the median remuneration of
employees.

iii. = The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company:
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There were 187 (including KMP) permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as
on March 31, 2016.

iv.  Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof:

Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the Financial Year 2015-16 was 8.14% whereas there was no increase in the
remuneration paid to the KMP's or Directors.
~ v.  Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company:
It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Policy for Remuneration of the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.
B. Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(2)

of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The details of top ten employees of the Company:

Director

Sr. No. 1 2
Name Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal Mr. Ramnath Prakash
Designation Chairman and Managing | Branch Manager

Remuneration paid

Rs. 2,50,000/- p.m.

Rs. 1,25,320/- p.m.

Nature of employment

Permanent

Permanent

Qualifications and

MBA, PHD, Industrial
Engineering, more than 35

Diploma, more than 20
years of experience

or employee

Experience .
years of experience
Date of commencement of June 30, 1988 October 23, 1991
employment
Age 62 years 50 years
N.A. since he is associated | N.A
Previ Empl ¢ with the
revious Employmen Company since its
inception
. 10719* Nil
No. of shares in th? . * of the above, 1079 shares
Company along with his held tee of
spouse and dependent are held as a trustee o
P. Shailendra Mittal Family
children
Trust '
Whether relative of Director | He is a Ditrector himself No
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Qualifications and
Experience

years of experience

Sr. No. 3 4

Name Mr., Ajay Duggal Mr. Shivesh Samanth

Designation Branch Manager Branch Manager

Remuneration paid Rs. 80,755/- p.m. Rs. 77,000/- p.m.

Nature of employment Permanent Permanent

Qualifications and Graduate, more than 30 | B.A, more than 30 years of

Experience years of experience experience

Date of commencement of February 2, 1981 April 1, 1981

employment

Age 58 years 55 years

Previous Employment N.A N.A

No. of shares in the Nil Nil

Company along with his

spouse and dependent

children

Whether relative of Director | No No

or employee

Sr, No. 5 6

Name Mr. Ajay Seth Mrs. Vilayanur Ravi

Designation Manager Regional Manager

Remuneration paid Rs. 60,683/- p.m. Rs. 71,000/- p.m.

Nature of employment Permanent Permanent
Graduate, more than 20| Post Graduate, She is

associated with the
Company for more than
5 years

or employee

Date of commencement of November 1, 1995 January 1, 2009
employment

Age 49 years 65 years
Previous Employment India Habitat Centre N.A

No. of shares in the Nil INil

Company along with his

spouse and dependent

children

Whether relative of Director | No No
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or employee

Sr. No. 7 8

Name Mr., Velgino Dias Mr. Hemant Panchal
Designation Branch Manager General Manager
Remuneration paid Rs. 63,000/- p.m. Rs. 50,772/- p.m.
Nature of employment Permanent Permanent
Qualifications and Post Graduate, more than | B.Com, more than 20 years
Experience 20 years of experience of experience

Date of commencement of August 1, 1993 February 28, 2001
employment

Age 48 years 61 years

Previous Employment N.A Sita Travels

No. of shares in the Nil Nil

Company along with his

spouse and dependent

children

Whether relative of Director | No No

or employee ’

Sr. No. 9 10

Name Mr. Yogesh Singh Mzr. Rakesh Sharma
Designation Branch Manager Accounts Manager
Remuneration paid Rs. 58,420/~ p.m. Rs. 58,399/ - p.m.
Nature of employment Permanent Permanent
Qualifications and B.Com, more than 10 years | Graduate, more than 20
Experience of experience years of experience
Date of commencement of February 28, 2001 July 20, 1992
employment

Age 42 years 50 years

Previous Employment Sita Travels Siddharth Travels
No. of shares in the Nil Nil

Company along with his

spouse and dependent

children

Whether relative of Director | No No

For Trade Wings Limited

Sd/-
Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00221661

Address: 62-A, Mittal Bhavan, Pedder Road, Mumbai 400026

Date: August 12, 2016
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE - 7

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
1. Industry structure and developments:
Overview:

The Company is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and
has its registered office at Goa, India and Corporate office in Mumbeai. In addition to
this, the Company has branches in more than 30 cities in India. The Company has its
equity listed on BSE Limited. The Company has been steadily expanding its customer
base, infrastructure, and service lines.

The Indian tourism and hospitality industry has emerged as one of the key drivers of
growth among the services sector in India. The second-largest sub-segment of the
services sector comprising trade, repair services, hotels and restaurants contributed
nearly US$ 295.7 billion or 19.2 per cent to the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in 2015-
16, while growing at 8.9 per cent year-on-year. Tourism in India has significant
potential considering the rich cultural and. historical heritage, variety in ecology,
tetrains and places of natural beauty spread across the country. Tourism is also a
potentially large employment generator besides being a significant source of foreign
exchange for the country.

The industry is expected to generate 13.45 million jobs across sub-segments such as
Restaurants (10.49 million jobs), Hotels (2.3 million jobs) and Travel Agents/Tour
Operators (0.66 million).

Trade Wings Limited: Poised For Growth

Each of our business has its own unique and secular growth drivers and we enjoy a
relative good position within each business.

The Company undertakes the business activities in the following areas:

Travel and travel related services
Cargo

Opportunities and Threats:
Opportunities:

Recovery and growth of economy as well as significant technology changes are
presenting several opportunities to the Company. Further, the Make in India initiative
of Government of India has also increased tourism in India, in addition to Investment,
Also the Government has introduced process of tourist visa on arrival for citizens of
certain countries which make travel easy. Trade Wings Limited sees opportunities of
growth on the back of reviving global economies, political and social stability in the
country. With the second largest population in the world, India also presents a large
number of potential consumers.
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Threats:

The global travel services industry is highly competitive with competition arising
from Multinational Companies and few Indian Companies having sizable presence
globally and also in the country. The stiff competition can lead to pressure on pricing,

and hence can impact Company growth and profitability.

The Company being in service industry, it is associated with supply side risks on
availability of talented pool of people and expetts. Also attracting talented people and

attrition remains a risk.

2. Segment-wise Performance:

During the year under review, the Company was operating in two segments viz.

1. Cargo
2. Travel Related Services

The segment-wise performance of the Company during the year is given below:

Particulars

Year ended March 31,
2016 (Amt in Rs.)

Total Segment Revenue

Cargo 11,43,028
Travel Rélated Services 18,20,90,075
Less: Inter Segment Revenue

Cargo 0
Travel Related Services 0
Revenue from External Customers

Cargo 11,43,028
Travel Related Services 18,20,90,075
Segment Profit/Loss before Interest and Tax

Cargo -15,04,725
Travel Related Services 2,61,36,857
Total 2,46,32,132
Less: Interest 2,10,62,052
Less: Other un-allocable expenditure net of un- 0
allocable income

Total Profit before Tax 35,70,079

3. Outloolk:

The future of the travel services industry will largely be shaped by the economic, social
and political environment between the countries. The friendly relation between the two

counties will ultimately boost our business.

The terrorist threats have hit the travel industry globally. Our company has also been
affected by it. However, the governments all over the world are taking terrorist threats
seriously and are making efforts to neutralize the threats. The way the governments
around the world prevent the terrorist activities, will play a key role in our industry.
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The Company is well poised to grow in the coming years.
4. Risks and concerns:

This report lists forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these statements as a
result of certain factors. This section lists our, risks and concerns:

o Our business will suffer if we fail to anticipate and provide new services and
enhance existing services to keep pace with rapid changes in the businesses on
which we focus.

e In the event that the Government of India or the government of another country
changes its external affairs policies in a manner that is adverse to us, our may be
affected, reducing our profitability.

e The Tours and Travel industry is a cyclical industry and is sensitive to changes in
the economy in general. A slowdown in global economy in general and any of
our focused economies in particular can unfavourably impact our business.

¢ Major Terrorist attack in the country

¢ Any Natural calamities or riots.

¢ Changes in foreign currency rates.

s Negative changes in export.

5. Internal Control systems and their adequacy:

The Company maintains adequate internal control system, which provides, among other
things, reasonable assurance of recording the transactions of its operations in all material
aspects and of providing protection against significant misuse or loss of Company’s
assets.

The Company has an adequate system of internal controls implemented for achieving
efficiency in operations, optimum utilization of resources with analysis of data to
strengthen it to meet the changing requirements.

The Board and the Audit Committee are responsible for maintaining the risk
management framework and internal control processes and policies. The Board assesses
and approves its overall risk appetite, monitors the risk exposure and sets the group-
wide limits, which are periodically reviewed. The Company’s management systems,
organizational structures, processes, standards, code of conduct and behaviors together
form a system of internal control that governs how it conducts its businesses and
manages associated risks. '

The effectiveness of the internal control mechanism is reviewed by internal audit team
and by the statutory auditors. The Audit Committee of the Board perjodically reviews
the functioning of the internal audit and the implementation of the recommended
measures to improve the internal control mechanism.
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6. Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance:

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15 C};;Sge
Revenue from operations 16,79,07,358 15,65,95,194 7.22
Othél' income (2) 1,54,55,999 2,12,60,008 -27.30
Sub-total (1+2) 18,33,63,357 17,78,55,202 3.10
Total Expenditure 17,97,93,278 18,03,53,295 -0.31
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 35,70,079 (24,98,093) 24291
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 50,47,222 (12,95,796) 489.51

The revenues from operations of the Company have grown by more than Rs. 1 crore as
compared to the previous financial year. There has been increase of 7.22% in the
revenues of the Company from the previous year. The Company was able to reduce the
expenses by 0.31% to Rs.17,97,93,278/- from Rs. 18,03,53,295 incurred in the previous
year. However, the other income of the Company has reduced drastically by 27.30%.
During the current financial year the Company has recorded Profit after tax of Rs.
50,47,222/- as compared to the loss of Rs. 12,95,796 in the previous year. The Company
is expected to earn more profits in the coming years.

7.  Material developments in Human Resources/ Industrial Relations front:

In any service enterprise, employees form the core of an organization. We recognize the
vitality of this stakeholder. A significant portion of our management focus is invested in
engaging with our employees and improvement of services to the client’s satisfaction.

During the year the Company has not reported any Management-Employee conflict.

The Company is committed to create an appropriate climate, opportunities and systems
to facilitate identification, development and utilization of employees’ full potential on a
continuous basis.

Number of employees: There were 187 employees (including KMP) on the pay roll of the
Company as on March 31, 2016.

Cautionary Statement:

Certain statements made in the management discussion and analysis report relating to
the Company’s objectives, projections, outlook, expectations, estimates and others may
constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and
regulations. Actual results may differ from such expectations, projections and so on,
whether express or implied. Several factors could make a significant difference to the
Company’s operations. These include economic conditions affecting demand and
supply, government regulations and taxation, natural calamities and so on over which
the Company may or may not have any direct control. The Company assumes no
responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward-looking statements, on
the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To,

The Members of _
Trade Wings Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statementsof M/S TRADE WINGS
LIMITED which comprise the Balance Sheet as at31st March, 2016, the statement of
Profit and Loss Account, the Cash Flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder
including the accounting standards and matters which are required to be included in
the audit report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatements,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India:

{a) In the case of Balance Sheet of the State of Affairs of the Company as at 31%
March 2016;

(b) In the case of Profit and Loss Account, of theProfitfor the year ended on that
date.

(¢) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Other Matter

We have not audited the financial statements of 21 branches&02 divisions included
in the financial statements of the Company, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs.2165.09]akhs and total revenues of Rs.1566.36 lakhs for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the financial statements. The financial statements of these
branches and divisions have been audited by other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by “the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section(11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure-A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

() We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit,

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by
the company so far as appears from our examination of those books; (proper
reports adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received from
branches and divisions not visited by us).

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account and with the reports received from branches and Divisions not visited
by us.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statementscomply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

(¢} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2016, from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in Annexure-B.

(g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according the
information and explanations given to us:

i) The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at
March 2016 on its financial positions in its financial statements.

if) The company has made provisions as at 31t March, 2016 as required
under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses. If any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

iiiy =~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the
year ended March 31, 2016.

ForSANTOSH SHAH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

SantoshA.Shah

Partner

Membership No, 46548

Firm Registration No. 121711W
Mumbai

Date: 30t May, 2016
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Trade Wings Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016)

1.

a)

b)

a)

The Company is in the process of maintaining records, showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation, of its fixed assets.

The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phase
programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been
physically verified by the Management during the year and no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of the immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 11 on fixed
assets to the financial statements are held in the name of the Company, except for
land and building having a carrying value of Rs.1,45,914/- as at March 31, 2016.

The Company’s Management has physically verified the stock of foreign
currencies/travelers cheques at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

b} In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of inventory of foreign

currencies followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation

~ to the size of the company and the nature of its business.

On the basis of our examination of the inventory records, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed
on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not
material and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of accounts.

The company has granted interest bearing unsecured loans to a subsidiary
company covered in registers maintained u/s 189 of Companies Act 2013.The
company has taken interest bearing unsecured loans and advance from one
Director covered in register maintained u/s 189 of Companies Act 2013.

No stipulation has been made with regards to repayment of loans given and
taken, including receipt and payment of interest, hence we cannot comment on
the repayments of the principal amounts.

No stipulation has been made with regards to repayment of loans given and
taken, including receipt and payment of interest, hence we cannot comument on
the amount overdue more than Rs. 1 lakh.

In respect of the aforesaid loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more
than ninety days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act 2013 in respect of the loans and investments made, and guarantees and security
provided by it.

The company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75, and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent
notified. 68



ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Trade Wings Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016)

6.

10.

11.

12,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, investor education and protection fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, customs duty,
excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom duty, Excise Duty, cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31t March, 2016 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable, except

Service Tax Rs.85,464/- payment in Travel Division;
¢) As at 31st March, 2016, the followings are the particulars of dues on account of

Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Wealth Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and
Cess that has not been deposited on account of any dispute:

Nature of Statute Amount Involved

Service Tax Rs.63.47 Lakhs (Net of amount paid)

Income Tax (Various assessment years) | Amount not ascertainable

According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the company is generally regular
in making payment of installments (EMI) to bank, except in few cases. However, the
same is paid. The company has not taken any loans from the Government and it has
not issued any debentures.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
term loans (Self Liquidating Overdraft) during the year have been applied, on the
overall basis, for the purposes for which they were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
have neither come across any instance of material fraud on or by the Company,
noticed nor reported during the year, nor have webeen informed of any such case by
the management.

The Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

As the Company is not a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to it, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
{Referred to in Paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Trade Wings Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016)

13. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with
the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under
Accounting Standards (AS) 18, Related Party disclosures specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014.

14. The Company has not made any preferential allotment of private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.
Accordingly the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the
company.

15. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
person corinected with him. Accordingly, the provision of Clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under Section-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

For SANTOSH SHAH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

SANTOSH A. SHAH

Partner

Membership No. 46548

Firm Registration No, 121711W
Mumbai

Date:30th May, 2016
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 10(f) of the Independent Auditors” Report of even date to the members
of Trade Wings Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016)

Report on the financial control under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Act: -

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Trade
Wings Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Group”) as of March 31, 2016 in
conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that dates.

Managements Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Group’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the-safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of fraud and errors, the adequacy and
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI These standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects. -

4. OQur audit involves performing procedure to obtain audit evidence about the |
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and ' i
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial i
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material
misstatement on the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. :

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system over financial reporhng
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 10(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members
of Trade Wings Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A Group’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purpose in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A Group’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately
and fairly reflect the transaction and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the group; and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial control over financial
reporting, including the possibility of conclusion or improper management
overrides of controls, material misstatements due to fraud orerror may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has in all material respect, an adequate internal
financial control system over financial reporting and such internal financial
control were operating effectively as at 313t March, 2016, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.

For SANTOSH SHAH & ASSOCIATES -
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

SANTOSH A. SHAH

Partner

Membership No. 46548

Firm Registration No. 121711W
Mumbai

Date; 30t May, 2016
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TRADE WINGS LTD

Standalone Balance Sheet As at 313t March, 2016, STANDALONE STANDALONE
As At As At
NOTES 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
(D) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
a) Share Capital 1 30,000,000 30,000,000
b} Rescrves and Surplus 2 37,692,177 32,806,152
(1) Share application money pending allotments
(3) Non-current Liabilities
#} Long-term bormowings 3 29,389,591 31,741,593
b} Deferred tax Liabilities (Net} 4 - 1,140,650
) Other long term liabilities 5 37,907,879 18,200,141
d) Long-term provisions [3 3,843,372 4,202,155
(4) Current Liabilities
a) Short-term borrowings 7 94,401,050 81,106,700
b) Trade Payables 8 98,341,950 97,182,089
) Other Current linbilities 9 41,518,439 39,858,765
d}) Short-term provisions 10 102,643 713,695
Total 373,197,101 - 336,951,940
M—
(IN) ASSETS
(1) Non-current Assets
a) Fixed Asscts
i) Tangible Assets 11 45,871,109 50,103,344
ii) Intangible Assets -
b} Non-cument Investments 12 10,631,801 10,631,801
¢} Deferred tax assets (Net) 4 914,150
(2) Current Assets -
a) Current Investment 13 18,916,637 324,735
b) Inventories 14 14,314,802 9,591,493
¢) Trade Receivables IS5 221,838,941 193,621,271
d) Cash and cash equivalents 16 16,523,712 20,742,006
) Short-term loans and Advances 17 37,228,298 34,541,193
f) Other current assets 12 6,957,651 17,196,097
Total 373,197,101 ~ 336,951,940
Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of accounts 25
Santesh Shah & Associates For Trade Wings Limited For Trade Wings Limit For Trade Wings Limited
Chartered Accountants
Sd/- Sdr- Sd- Sdr-
M. Santesh A, Shah Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal Mr. Vishwanathan Nair Mr. Siddhanth Nimbatkar
Partner Chairman & Managing Director  C.F.Q. ) Company Secretary
Membership No 46548 DIN 00221661 PAN: AEXPN275TE Membership No.; A40636
Firm Registration No. 121711W
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 30th May, 2016

‘Date: 30th May, 2016
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TRADE WINGS LTD

Dite: 30th May, 2016

Date: 30th May, 2016
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Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 315t March, 2016 STANDALONE STANDALONE
As At Ad At
NOTES 31-03-2016 3u03/015
Rupees Rupees
1 | REVENUE
Revenue from cparaiions 19 167,907,358 156,595,194
Other Income Fd 15455999 21,260,008
Total Revesiue 183,363,387 171458202 |
11 |EXPENSES
Ewmployes benefits expenses 21 62278112 65,635,712
Financial expenses 22 21,062,052 20,135,656
Depreciation and amortization expenses 11 6,565,343 10,718,903
Other expenses 23 82,887,771 83,863,023
Total of Expense 179,793,278 186, 95
Profit before exe: -H) 3,570,079 198,093
I | Less: Exceptional items
Prior period Expensas (Net) - -
Profit before extra-ordinary ivems and {ax (II-1¥) 3,870,079 {2,498,093)]
1V | Less: Esira-ordinary items - -
Prafit befor tax (V-VI) 3,570,079 (2,498,093}
V| Less: Tax expenses
(a) Current tax - .
(b) Deforred tax 2,054,801 881,777
(¢} Tax paid for earlier years - .
{d) Excess Provision - 600,000
{e) Others (577,658) (279,480)
1,477,143 1,202,297
VI | Profit/Loss for the period from continning operations (VII-VII) 5,047,222 (1,295,796}
VI | ProfiLoss for ehe period from discontinuing operations - -
VI | Less: Tax expenses of discontinuing operati - -
X | ProfitL.os fur the period from discontinuing
operations [after tax] - .
X | Profit’Los for the period 5,047,222 {1,295,796))
Eaming per ¢quity share: u
(a) Basic 168 (0.43)
{b) Diluted
Illa!anoe Carvied Forward to Balance Sheet 5,047,222 !tﬁmz
Accoutsting Policies and Notes forming past of 25
accounts .
Santesh Shah & Asssclates For Trade Wings Limited For Trade Wings Limited For Trade Wings Limited
Chartered Accountants
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Mr.Santosh A. Shab Dr. Shailendra P, Mittal Mr. Vishwanathan Nair ~ Mr. Siddhanth Nimbalkar
Partner Chairman & Managing Director  C.F.O. Company Secrsiaty
Membership No.46548 DIN 00221661 PAN: AEXPN273TE Membership No.: A40636
Firm Registration No.121711W
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 30th May, 2016 Date: 30th May, 2016



TRADE WINGS LTD

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

2015-16 2014-18
—_— Rupees Rupees Rupees ) Rupees
A. [CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: )

Profit for the year 5,047,222 (1,295,796)
Adjustment for :

Depreciation 6,726,540 10,718,903
Discontinie operation / Amalgamation of company (122,919) (2,933,574)

Deferred Tax Liability (2,054,801}, (88,717
Provision for Tax 577,658 (320,520)

Laoss/(profit) from parinership fiem (41,517) (5,290)

Exchange difference 619,663 330,651
Interest and financial charges 21,062,052 20,135,656
Interest income (3,166,307 23,594,300 £2,323,379) 24,720,671
Operating profit before working capital changes 28,641,531 23,424,875
Adjustments for :

(increaseMDecrease in Trade Receivables (28,217.669) 4,097,033
(Increase¥Decrease in inventories (4,723,300) 954,989
(Intrease)/Decrease in Current investments (18,391,902) (75,692)

(Increase)/Decrease in short term loans and advances (2,687,105} * 3,067,767
(Encrease)/Decrease in Non Cusrent investments - 7,491,700
(Increase)Decrease in Other current assets 10,238,447 3,195753
(Encrease)Decrease in long term loans and sdvances 17,355,736 21,202,627

ncrease/(Decrease) in current lisbilities and provisions 15,144,050 25,085,863)

. (11,281,752) 14,848,314

Cash generated from operations 17,359,779 38,173,189
Add: Reduction in Provision for Taxes (577,658) (577,658) 320,520 320,520
NET CASH FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES 16,782,121 38,503,709

B |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Deletions/(Additions) to fixed assets, including capital work-ind
progress/advances and adjustments for exchange fluctuation (2,371,385) (23,495,531}

Loans/Advances to other companies - - . .
Incame from investments 47577 5,290
Enterest income 3,166,307 2323378

842,499 {21,366 863)%
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 842,499 (21,366,853)
C |CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
proceeds from Issuance of share capital
Reduction in Revaluation Reserve (161,197 = (161,197
[Exchange difference (619,663) (330,651}
Interest and financial charges paid (21,062,053} (20,135,656)
(21.842.913) {20,627,504)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (21,842.913) (20,627,504
@ |NET CASH FLOWS DURING THE YEAR (A+B+C) (4,218,293) (3,400,658)
(i) |Cash and cash equivalents (opening balance) 20,742,005 24,142,663 |
Cash and cash equivalents (Closing Balance balance) 16,523,712 20,742,005
Total of "l + !ii! 16,523,712 20,742,005
Balance Sheet Amount Rs. 16,523,712 20,742,005
Santosh S$hah & Associates For Trade Wings Limited For Trade Wings Limited For Trade Winogs Limited
Chartered Accountants
Sdi Sd- sd- 5d/-

_Mr. Santesh A.Shah Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal Mr. Vishwanathan Nair  Mr, Siddhanth Nimbalkar
Partnér : Chairman & Managing Director CF.0. Company Secretary
Membership No.46548 DIN 00221661 PAN: AEXPN27STE ’ Membership No.: A40636
Firm Registration No.121711W : .
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 30th May, 2016

Date: 30th May, 2016
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TRADE WINGS LTD

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS

NOTE 3 As At As Al
SHARE CAPITAL 31103/2016 31/03/2018
Rupees Rupees
Share Capltat
Authorised
3000000 squity shares of Rs.10 /- sach 3,00,00,00G 3,00,00,000
200,000 6% Preference Shares of Rs.100i- each (re~classified) 2,00.00.000 2,00.0(3,0{].0
350,000 6% Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each (fresh) 3,50,00.00G 3,50,00,600
8,50‘0_0.000 SM:WD
Issued, Subscribed and paid vp
Issued, Subscribed and paid up
3000000 equisy shares of Rs, 10/ cach Fully Paid 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000
+ NOTE: Of the above, 9000 Equity shares arc allatted to vendors as
fully paid-up pursuant to 2 Contract without payment received in cash,
3,00,00,000 3,00,00.000 )
DETAILS OF SHARE HOLDERS, HOLDING MORE THAN 5% As At As At
SHARES IN THE COMPANY 3032016 31032015
Rupess Rupees )
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Narayani Hospitality & Academle Institution Pyt Ltd.
(formerly known as Appease Investments & Finance Pyt Lid)
No. of Shares 22,34,341 2234341
% Holding T4 A48% T4 A8%
Benjo Holdings Pyt. Ltd.
No, of Shares 1,87,736 1,87.736
% Holding 6.26% 6.26%
Sagarkanya Inv. & Finance Pvt. Ltd
No. of Shares t,84,525 1,84,525
% Holding 6.13% 6.15%
Vishwadeep Inv. & Finance Pvt. Ltd
No. of Shares 1,81,870 1,851,870
% Holditp 6.06% 6.06%]
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NOTE 2 As At As At
RESERVE AND SURPLUS 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees _Rupees
Capital Reserve:-
Opening balance 6,13,337 6,13,337
Add:- Addition during the year - -
Less:- Deduction during the year - -
6,13,337 6,13,337
Revaluation Reserve
Opening balance 57,51,982 59,13,179
Add:- Addition during the year - -
Less:- Deduction during the year (1,61,197) (1,61,197)
55,890,785 57,51,982
General Reserve
Opening batance 21,77,804 21,717,804
Add:- Addition during the year - -
Less:- Deduction during the year - -
21,77.804 21,717,804
Other Reserve:-
Profit and Loss Alc:-
Opening Balance 2,42,63,029 2,84,92,398
Add:- Profit/Loss during the year 50,47,222 (12,95,796)
Less:- Loss from amalgamated company - 29,33,573
2,93,10,251 2,42,63,02¢
3,76,92,177 3,28,%1 52
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NOTE 3 As At As At
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Long-Term Borrowings
Term loan from National Co-operative Bank Lid - 1162 1,14,53,247 1,22.06.149
Add: Interest accrued and due 1,32,438 1,40,834
Less: Repayable within | year 10,53,597 10,58,062
(Refer Note 1 below) 1,05,32,088 1.12,88,921
Term loan from National Co-operative Bank Ltd - 1167 85.74.496 50,99.071
Add: Interest accrued and due 99,147 1,04,876
Less: Repayable within 1 year 5,82.756 7.91,126
(Refer Note 2 below) 80,90,887 84,12,821
Term loan from National Co-operative Bank Ltd - 1165 1,12,21,708 1,19.18,151
Add: Interest accrued and due 1,29,893 1,37.610
Less: Repayable within | year 7,80,411 7,57,265
{Refer Note 3 below) 1,05,71,1%0 1,12,98,496
Tata Capital Finance Services Lid. 418,694 13,20,651
Iess: Repayabie within 1 year 4,18,694 9,01.957
(Refer Note 4 below) - 4,18,694
Car loan 3,22,661 4,47 647
Less:Repayable within 1 year 1,27,235 1,24.986
(Refer Note 4 below) 1,95,426 3,22,661
2,93,89,591 3,17,41,593

{1} Self Liquidating Additional QDI from National Co-operative Bank secuered by the extension of registered mortgage of leased property of 305 sg.mts.
Located on the Lst floor of the premises Bhogilal Building, K Dubash Marg, Kalaghoda, Mumbai inclusive and personal guarantee of Dr. S P Mintal.

Rate of Interest -The Company's borrowings from banks are at an effective weighted average rate of 13,50%p.a (previous year 13.50%) as per sanction
letter no. NCB/NPBR/ £2013-14, dt. 03rd October, 2013

(2) Self Liguidating Additional ODI from National Co-operative Bank secucred by the extension of registered mortgage of leased property of an area
admeasuring 3284 sq.ft. including commen area of toilet block and entry hall of 282 sq.fi. en 1st flr of the Bhogilal H. Bldg., 18/20, K.Dubash Marg,
Kalaghoda, Fort, Murnbai - 23 and personal guarantee of Dr. $ P Miital. :

Rate of Interest -The Company's barrowings from banks are at an effective weighted average rate of 13,50%p.a .(previous year 13.30%) as per sanction
leiter ne. NCB/HO/Loan/9/2044-15/ /2013-14, dt. 3151 May, 2G14.

(3) Self Liquidating Additonal QDI from National Co-operative Bank secuered by the extension of registered mortgage of leased property of an area
admeasuring 3284 sq.ft. including commen area of toilet block and entry hall of 282 sq.ft. en st flr of the Bhogilal H. Bldg., 18/20, K.Dubash Marg,
Kalaghoda, Fort, Mumbai - 23 and personal guarantee of Pr. S P Mittal.

Rate of [nterest -The Company's horrowings from banks are at an effective weighted average rate of 13.50%p.a .(previous year 13.50%) as per sanction
leiter ne. NCB/HO/Board/12/2013-14, dt. 31st May, 2014,

{4) Vehicle Loan are secured against hypothetication of vehicles Financed. The rate of Interest 13.25% p.a.

(5) Loan sanctioned and disbursed during the year is under process of creation of charge as explained by the management, hence the auditors has relied
upon the same and shown under secured loan.
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NOTE 4 As At As At
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax Liabilities/Asset
Deferred tax Assets 11,33,372 13,834,556
Less:- Deferred tax Liability (2,19,222) {2,43,906)
9,14,150 11.40,650
NOTE 5§ As At As At
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 31032016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Other long-term liabilities
Directors & Others 3,79,07,879 1,82,00,141
3,79,07,879 1£2i001141
NOTE 6 As At As At
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 317032016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Other Long-Term Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Non Current Liability) 35,71,836 38,61,151
Leave Encashment (Non Current Liability) 2,711,536 341,004
38,43,372 42,02,155
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NOTE 7 As At As At
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Secured:-
Cash Credit Fecilities
{a) From Bank
Union Bank Of India (Refer Note 1 below) 3,18,53,389 3,05,08,423
Vijaya Bank (Refer Note 2 below) 6,08,33,661 480,46,777
Loans and advances from related parties
(b) Deposits 17,14,000 25,81,500
9,44,01,050 8,11,05,700

(1) Cash Credit facility from Union Bank of india i secured by hypothecation of boak debts and stock of foreign currencies and encashed travellers’

and Unpit No.6, Surya Vihar, Dundahera, Gurgaoen, Delhi.

cheques present and future, and guaranteed by some of the Directors of the Company. In addition, the Company has undertaken to create charge in

favour of Banks on immovable property at Flat No. 12-B bldg 91, Pacharaina Society, Thane, FlatNo.12-B, bldg no.53, Sevakunj Society, Thane

Rate of interest - The company’s borrowings from banks are at floating rate of BR + 3 75% subject ic change time 1o time as per the sanction letter No.

MSM.ADV 1367/14, dated 08th October, 2014,

(2a) Cash Credit facility from Vijaya Bank is secured by hypothecation of book debts and guaranteed by some of
addition, the Company has undertaken to create charge in favour of Banks on immovable propesty at unit No.
Bangalore, Unit No.141 and 44 of Adarsh Ind Estaie, Andheri, Mumbai. and Flat No.2, B Wing, Aarti Soceity,
guarantee of M/s, Narayani Hospitality & Academic Institutions Pvt. Lid., Ms. Trade Wings Logistics (Ind
(2ai) Adhoc limit from Vijaya Bank vide sanctioned letter no. MRO/GML/CC/190/2015-16, Dt. 2411201

the Directors of the Company. In
1101,1102,1103 Mital Tower B-Wing ,
Mumbai 404 034 and Corporate

5, with same Terms & Conditions.

(2b) Shop No. 9, First Floor, "Manoram Arcade” at Vakilwadi, Nashik land bearing survey No. 609/A/2B, Municipal No. 430-J-1, admeasuring about

362.04 sq.mirs.

(2c) Office No. 110, on the first floor 350,37 sq. fi. L.e. 32.55 sq. mtrs carpet area in the project known as

Shanti City at village Talegaon Dabhade of

Taluka Maval, Dist. Pune land bearing survey No, 532 (old S. No. 714) CTS No. 2431 to 2435 and 3294 totally admeasuring about 2.54 hect. L.e. 29400

sq. mtrs and 16542.4 sq. mirs.

(2d) Shop Ne. 12/13, first floor, "Manoram Arcade” 8.No. 609/A/2B off. M.G.Road, opp. Sharda Sankul & Nilesh Dry Fruites, Vakilwadi, Nashik.

Rate of interest - The company’s borrowings from banks are at floating rate of BR + 3.80% subject to ¢
MRO/GMICC/310/2014-15, dated 24ih March, 2015,

hange time to 1ime as per the

sanction letter Ne.

NOTE $ As At As At
TRADE PAYABLES 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees . Rupees
Trade Payables 9,83,41,950 9,71,82,089
9,83,41,950 9,71,82,089

There are no Micre & Srmall Enterprises to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding for more then 45day!
information regarding Micro & small enterprises lave been determined to the extent such parties have been identified

available with the company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

< at the Balance sheet date:The
on the basis of information
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NOTE 9 As At As At
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Other payables:-
Current-liabilities 3,59.83,649 3,59.53,378
Group company balances 16,61,150 -
Statutory liabilities 38.,73,640 39,05,387
4,15,18,439 3,98,58,765
NOTE 19 As At As At
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Other provisions
For Taxasion 1,02.643 7,13,695
1,02,643 7,13.695
NOTE 11 As At As At
TANGIBLE ASSETS 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Non-current Assets
Fixed Assets
As on 315t March, 2016 4,58.71,109 5,01,03,344
4,58,71,10% 5,01,03,344
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INOTE 12 Ag At Az At
NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
[Investment it Praperty
Investments in Equity Ingtruments
{b) Trade wing {Caleutta) pvt Ltd 25,000 25,000
(250 ordinary shares of Rs, 1{}) each)
Less:- Provision for Dimulution in value {24,999} {24,999)
(¢) Trade wing Tours Lad 100 100
(1 equity shares of Rs. 100/~ each fully paid up)
(d) Trade wing Hotels Ltd 99,00,200 99,00,200
(99,002 Equity shares of Rs.100/~ each fully paid up)
{e) National Co. Op. Bank 5,21,000 521,000
(49000 Shares of Rs. 10 each) -
(f) Drishti Lifestyles Lid. 11,000 11,000
(Rs.110 shates of Rs. 100/~ each) -
(g) Videocon Limited 7.500 7,500
Investments in Preference shares
(b) Trade wing Tours Ltd 2,000 2,000
(20 13.50% Redeemable cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each.)
Tnvestments in Govermvent securities
N.8.C of Rs. 5,000/~ deposited with Customs Authorities, 15,000 15,000
Tnvestents in Partnership flrms
(a) Narayani Associates capital account 15,000 75,000
Glaobal Kischens LLP 1,00,000 1,60,000
1,061,801 IEMEI ol
Name of the Partnership Firm Nerayanl Asgoclates Narayani Assoclates
Details of Partners % of Profit/Loss % of Profit/Loss
Trade wings Ld 20 15
Narayani Hospitality & Academic Institution 80 10
Dr Shailendra P Mittal - 5
Global Kltchens LLP Global Kitchens LLP
Narayani Hospitality & Academic Institution 80 80
Trade Wings Limited 15 15
Dr. 8.P.Mital 5 5
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NOTE 13 As At As AL
CURRENT INVESTMENTS 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Investments in Debentures or bonds
Investments in Partnership firms {Narayani Assc.} - 1,78.823
Investments in Partnership firms (Global Kitchen LLP) - 345912
{Other Non Current Investment 1.89,16,637
1,89,16,637 524,735
NOTE 14 As At As At
INVENTORIES 31132016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
(As Taken, Valued and certified by the management}
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade 1.43,14,802 95,91,493
1,43,14,802 95,91,493
NOTE 15 As At As At
TRADE RECEIYABLES 31/03/2016 IN/ON2015
Rupees Rupees
Unsecured and considered good:-
Cutstanding for more than & months 3.22.64,600 1,43,46,823
Others 14.15,20,573 14,19,46,584
Less:- Pravision for Doubtful Debts (1,12,449) {1,12,449)
Add: Debts due by Directors or other officer of company or firms or
private co's in which any directer is a partner ot director or member, 4,81.65.817 3,74,40,313
22,18,38,941 19,35,21,271
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NOTE 16 As At As At
CASH AN} CASH EQUIVALENTS 31032016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Cash in hand 43,383,718 16,96,000
Balance with schedule and non schedufe ban}
Current Account 1,07,20,451 1,24,88,71%8
Foreign currency account 12,899 12,999
Fixed deposit account £4,51,544 65,44,289
165,23,712 2.,07,42,006
NOTE 17 As At As At
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Unsecured and considered good:
Balance with Revenue Authorities 2,16,20,834 1,94.33,068
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind 15,34,074 12,37,467
Debit Balance in Afc Payable 90.45,085 81,56,183
Provisions - 2,71,817
Prepaid expense 2,83,885 6,67,196
Staff advance 7.12,i18 17,94,359
Others 1,07,.970 102,610
Loans and deposits 39,24,332 26,77,993
3,75&3.&98 3,45,41,193
NOTE 18 CAs At Az At
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 31/03/2016 31/03/201%
Rupees Rupees
Group company balances: 69,57,651 1,71,96,097
69.57,651 |I71£6Iﬂ97
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS

NOTE 19 As At As At
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 31-03-2016 31-03-2015
Rupees Rupees
Income from Money Changing Business 1,19,48,838 2,60,13,090
Commission and Agency Service Charges 10,54,92,876 7,96,88.255
Service Charges (Nel) 5,04,65,644 5,08,93,849
16,79,07,358 15,65,95,194
NOTE 20 As At As At
OTHER INCOME 31-03-2016 31-03-2015
Rupees Rupees
Interest earned -
On Bank Fixed Deposit 1,26,373 5,75,901
On Loan to Subsidiary Co. & Others 21,53,455 12,49,739
On Income Tax Refund 8,86,479 497,738
Miscllaneous Income 25,76,136 88,78,369
Rental Income 46,15,096 56,87,003
Other Commission 1,28,498 1,916
Inceatives on Card Sale 9,10,843 2,760
Insurance Commission 99,308 -
Profit or (Loss} from Narayani Associates 47,577 5,290
Sundry Credit balance W/Back 1,30,254 573,312
Share of Profit from Globle Kitchens LLP 37,81,980 37,281,980
1,54,55,999 2,12,60,008
NOTE 21 As At As At
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 31-03-2016 31-03-2015
Rupees Rupees
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 6,64,27.019 6,17,70.447
Contribution to PF and Other Funds 20,09,039 21,35,092
Staff Gratuity 5,12,452 14,59,928
Staff Leave Encashment 3,29,602 2,70,246
6,92,78,112 6,56,35,713
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NOTE 22 As At Az At
FINANCIAL EXPENSES 31-03-2016 3103115
Rupees Rupees
Interest expense:~
On Bank Loan
Union Bank of India 4,518,716 4,131,763
Vijaya Bank 3,673,727 9,335,938
National Co-op Bank 4,503,237 4,940,795
On Narayani Associates - 133,024
On Directors Loan 3,284,635 1.267.816
On Car Loan 57,255 326,320
On Service Tax 24,432 -
Total 21,062,052 20,135,656
NOTE 23 A At Aa At
OTHER EXPENSES 31-03-2016 3103/2015
Rupees Rupets
Audit Fees 1,106,397 1,201,036
Rent, Rates, Taxes and Fees 3,743,343 4,850,877
Insurance 1,124,861 969,775
Motor Car Expenses 2,567,182 2,229,233
Postage, Telegrame, Telephone and telex 5,696,169 5,608,418
Printing and stationery 4,447,167 5,631,534
Electricity & Water Charges 2,670,231 2,646,711
Metbecship & Subscription 815,812 392,196
Bank Charges 2,151,405 1,599,739
Legal & Professional Charges 18,739,088 18,785,123
[Ropairs & Maintenance 7,326,554 7.472,805
Bad Debes 96,644 779,639 |
Other Expenses 32,352,978 31,695,937
32,887,771 33,863,023
NOTE 24 As At As At
EARNINGSALOSS) PER SHARE 31-03-2016 ILRN/2018
Rupees Rupees
Number of equity Shares of Rs 10each futly paid up
at the beginning of the period. 3,000,000 3,000,600
Number of equity Shares of Rs 10each fully paid at
the period end 3,000,000 3,000,000
‘Weighted Average number of Equity shares )
[ ding during the year 3,000,000 3,000,000
Nat Profit for the year 5,047,222 (1,295,796)
Basie/Diluted Profit Per Share 1.68 (0.43)
Nominal Valus of Equity share 10 10
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Note 25

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF THE
ACCOUNTS

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,

GENERAL

Accounts are prepared on accrual basis in keeping with normally accepted
accounting principles.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable Accounting Standards
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, except in the case of
fixed assets as given below:

FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Cost compromises purchase price and any other
attributable cost to bring the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on Written Down Value
(WDV) at the rates prescribed under schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013,

Fixed Assets are carried at cost less depreciation. Cost of Fixed Assets includes
addition on account of revaluation of property situated in Adarsh Society and in

Bhogilal Building.

DEPRECIATION

The company provides depreciation as under:

I Depreciation is provided as per the Written Down Method at the rates
prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

I Depreciation on addition during the year is being provided on a pro rata
basis from the date of addition of the asset.

111 Depreciation on additions due to revaluation to assets has been provided
with reference to the balance useful life of the asset determined on a basis
consistent with the policy for book depreciation. The additional charge of
depreciation on account of revaluation is withdrawn from Revaluation
Reserve and credited to the Profit & Loss Account.

v Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000/~ acquired during the year have been
depreciated at 100%.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is derived from sale & purchase of foreign currencies, tour packages
and air ticket bookings and other allied services.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis by reference to the
principle outstanding and at the rate applicable.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are stated at cost. Long Term Investments are stated at cost and
provision for diminution in value of investment is made unless the diminution is
of temporary nature.

INVENTORY VALUATION

The stock of Foreign Currency has been valued at the Bank buying rate
prevailing at the year end.

ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME AND EXPENSES: |

Income and expenses are accounted in books of account on accrual basis

a) In the case of out - bound tour, invoices are raised on the basis of
confirmation of tour received from the customers, but the income is
recognized on the completion of the tour. Accordingly, amounts are shown
as sundry debtors vis-a-vis advance from customers.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing
on the date of transaction. Current assets and liabilities not covered by Forward
Exchange contracts are retranslated at year end exchange rates and the
profit/loss so determined and also the realised exchange gains/losses are
reflected in the Profit and Loss account. Balance in Foreign Currency Accounts to
the extent of Liabilities in Foreign Currencies is translated at the interbank selling
-rafe.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS:

Contributions to Provident Fund and Pension fund are accounted on accrual
basis. Liability in respect of leave encashment and gratuity due to employees is
accounted on actuarial basis as certified by an approved Actuary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

Contingent Liabilities are not provided for but are disclosed separately.

8¢



B. NOTES TQ ACCOUNTS

31-03-2016 31-03-2015
Rupees Rupees
1 Contingent liabilities in respect of :
(a) | Penalties levied by the Collector of Customs
on the Company and its employees for alleged
violation of the Customs Act 1962 for
Rs.26,00,000/-, against which the Company is 15,75,000/- 15,75,000/-
in appeal. The matter pending outcome of
Appeal.
(b) | Central Railway Not Ascertainable Not Ascertainable
{c) | Service Tax Liability 63,46,840/ - 63,46,840/-
(Net of amount paid) (Net of amount paid)
{d) | Pending Legal Cases 62,25,000/ - 62,25,000/-
(Bank Guarantee given (Bank Guarantee given
Rs.31,12,500/-) Rs.31,12,500/-)
(¢) | Guarantee in form of Negative lien on ownership property given/ agreed to be given by the Company
in favour of:
Guarantees in favour of Financial Assistance Limit ;
. . Amount outstanding As at
availed by sanctioned
Rupees 31-03-2016 | 31-03-2015
Rupees Rupees

I National Co-op. Bank(1149) | M/s.Narayani Associates | 1,35,00,000 /- Nil 22,75,813/-

I Vijaya Bank aﬁ'ﬁz)vl\;i‘:gftﬁog“““ 60,00,000/- | 5863845/~ | 44,73,308/-

m National Co-op. Bank (1153) | M/s.Narayani Associates 75,00,000/ - Nil 43,01,819/-

v National Co-op. Bank (1157) | M/s.Narayani Associates | 100,00,000 /- Nil 52,50,132/-

v National Co-op. Bank {1159) | M/s Narayani Agsociates 75,00,000/ - Nil 45,89,168/ -

V1 National Co-op. Bank (1163} | M/s.Narayani Associates 90,00,000/- Nil 81,85,380/-

VII National Co-op. Bank (1164) | Trade Wings Hotels Ltd 1,50,00,000/- | 1,09,05,153/- {1,15,52,044/-

VIII National Co-op. Bank (1166) | Trade Wings Hotels Ltd 2.00,00,000/- | 1,4855729/- [1,83,86,005/-

X National Co-op. Bank (1168) | Trade Wings Hotels Ltd 1,75,00,000/- | 1,43,67,555/- Nil

2 Counter guarantees to Banks in respect of guarantees given by them for
PaYment%o Airlines, Railways and gustomsgu ¥ Y 3112,500/- | 78,32500/-

3 Estimated amount of Contracts (net of advance Rs.1,95,000/-) Previous
Year Rs.1,95,000/-) to be executed on capital accounts and not provided 5,50,000/ - 5,50,000/-
for.

4 (a} | Provision has been made in the accounts for Sundry Debtors considered doubtful for

Rs.1,12,449/- (previous year Rs.1,12,449/-).

In the opinion of the Management, provision for doubtful debts for debts which are
outstanding for more than six months are not required. Management is hopeful for recovery of
such amount in due course of time,

5 The income from commission, Difference in Exchange, baggage handling and clearing charges, service
charges, passport and visa and car hire has been shown net as in the past ie. after deducting all
expenses and payment in relation to the said head of income.

6 Managerial remuneration as per Companies Act, 2013. 31-03-2016 | 31-03-2015

Rupees Rupees
To Managing Director/whole time Directors
Salary 31,80,012/4 31,80,012/-
HRA 0 0
Notes:

a. Remuneration to Managing Director/ whole time directors are paid within the limit of

Companies Act, 2013.

b. Whole time director is covered under the Company’s group gratuity scheme along with the
other employees of the company. The gratuity and leave liability is determined for all the
employees on an overall basis based on the actuarial valuation done by an independent

actuary. The specific amount of gratuity and leave liability for the director cannot be
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ascertained separately, except for the amount actually paid.

The revaluation of property in Adarsh Society and owned by the Company and leasehold property in
Bhogilal Building was made on 01/04/1986 resulting into additions of Rs.1,04,26,695/- (previous year
Rs. 1,04,26,695/-) The depreciation for the year includes Rs.1,61,197/- (Previous year Rs.1,61,197/-)
being depreciation on addition on account of revaluation and the equivalent amount out of revaluation
reserve has been withdrawn and credited to Profit and Loss Account,

Payment to Auditors: 31/03/2016 31/03/2015

{a) | Audit Fees _ 10,39,366/ - 11,31,575/ -

{b) | For Tax Audit 25,573/- 29461/-

{c) | In any Other Manner 41,458/- 40,000/ -

Certain premises have been purchased in the name of a Director of the Company for which
suitable indemnity is obtained. The Company is in process of compiling documents.

10

Expenditure in foreign currency on account of travelling
membership and subscription fees & services rendered by | Rs.2,19560/- -| Rs.3,71,693/-
foreign agents & hotels etc.

11

Earning in Foreign Exchange:

{a) | Ticketing and tour arrangements . NIL NIL

(b) ‘Commlsswn & service charges (inclusive of difference NIL NIL
in exchange)

12

The particulars of earning in foreign exchange and expenditure in foreign currency have been
ascertained by the management on the basis of information available with them on which
auditors have relied.

13

The company has the following investment and loans in the subsidiary companies:

Name of subsidiary Loan Rupees

Investment Rupees
company

Trade Wings Hotels Limited 99,02,200/- 42,25,570/ -

The losses of TWHL exceed its paid up capital and free reserves as at 31% March, 2016. In view
of the Long-term involvement of the Company in TWHL, no provision has been made in the
accounts for the said losses. In the opinion of the management, considering the market value of
the assets of the TWTIL, the overall net worth of TWHL will be higher than the amount invested
in all the companies. Therefore the provision for diminution in value of investment is not
required.

14

The Assessment of Income Tax is completed up to Accounting year 2013-14. The Appeals have
been filed by Company and income Tax departments in various years viz. 2006-07, 2007-08,
2008-09, and 2009-10. The demand in respect thereof is indeterminate.

15

Prior period’s incomeé& Expenses are NIL/- (pre. year also Prior Period Income & Expenses was
NIL)

16

During the year, the Gratuity Liability and Leave encashment liability have been provided on
actuarial basis as certified by approved Actuaries.

17

Earnings per share is calculated as follows 2015-16 2014-15

Net Profit (Loss) after Tax (Rupees) 50,47,222/- | (12,95,796/-)

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 30,00,000/- | 30,00,000/-
(no.)

Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rupees) 10/- 10/-

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (rupees) 1.68 (0.43)
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18 | Description For the year ended | For the year ended
March,2016 March, 2015
Amount in Rupees | Amount in Rupees
Total Segment Reverue
s  Cargo 11,43,028/ - 16,41,547 /-
* Travel Related Services 18,20,90,075/ - 17,56,40,343/-
Less : Inter Segment Revenue
o (Cargo
¢ Travel Related Services
Revenue from External Customers
e Cargo 11,43,028/- 16,41,547/ -
¢ Travel Related Services 18,20,90,075/ - 17,56,40,343/-

Segrment Profit/ Loss before Interest and Tax

s Cargo (15,04,725/-) (13,84,658/-)
s  Travel Related Services 2,61,36,857/- 1,90,22,221/-
Total 2,46,32,132/- 1,76,37,563/ -
Less : Interest 2,10,62,063/- 2,01,35,656/ -
Less : Other Un-allocable Expenditure net of
un-allocable income
Total Profit Before Tax 35,70,079/- (24,98,093/-)

Fixed Assets and other current assets used in the Company’s business or liabilities
contracted have not been identified to any of the reportable segments, as the fixed assets
and services are used interchangeably between segments. The company believes that it
is currently not practicable to provide segment disclosures relating to total assets and
liabilities since a meaningful segregation of the available date is onerous.

19. During the year, the company has written off sundry debit balance of Rs.39,67,056/-
(Previous Year Rs.23,21,986/-), Loans and advance are Nil/- (Previous year Nil/-)} and
written back Rs.1,30,254/- (Previous Year Rs.5,73,312/-) as approved by board of
directors. The effect of write off and write back has been shown in the Profit and Loss
account.

20. Fixed assets includes Rs.11,30,000/- related to purchase of property at Calcutta for .
which proper documentation andregistration procedures are pending. Auditor has
relied upon the value of the property confirm and certified by management.

21. Fixed assets includes Rs.28,67,096/- related to purchase of vehicle for which
documentation and registration procedures are pending. Auditor has relied upon the
value of the vehicle confirm and certified by management.

22, Previous year’s figures have been regrouped /reclassified where necessary.

23. As per Accounting Standard 18, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of
India, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties as defined in the
Accounting Standard are given below:
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¢ List of Related Parties and their relationship

Category | Name of the Related Party Relationship
1. Narayani Hospitality & Academic Holding Company
Institution Pvt. Ltd.

2. Trade Wings Hotels Ltd. Subsidiary Companies

3. Dr.S.P.Mittal Key Management Personnel
Associates and Entities over

4. Narayani Associates which TWL is able to exercise
significant influence.

5. Global Kitchen LLP Partnership Firm

-

+ Transactions during the period with related parties.

Category ( Amount in Rupees)

Associates
Entities over
Sr. Nature of Transactions Holding Subsidiary Key which TWLis | Partnership
No Company Company Management able to Firm
’ . Personnel exercise
significant
influence
1. | Interest Paid 32,84,456/- Nit
(Previous Year) (12,67,816/-) Nil
2. I;tere.st Reycen;ecl Nil (ﬁhggg(l)gﬁ - 4,46,355)-
(Previous Year) 7117/- 85205/-) (1,33,024/-)
3. Remuneration Paid 31,80,012/-
(Previous Year) (31,80,012/-)
4. | Share of Global Kitchen 37,831,980/ -
Profit e
37,81,980/-
(Previous Year) /
5. ihare ofte Narayani 47,577/ -
ssociates
5,290/ -
{Previous Year) ( /)
6. Amount Received /
Paid towards Loan
Balance as on 31st
March, 2015 Nil 1,3496,170/- | 1,42,40,263/-
{Previous Year) (93,80,612/-) | (99,16,694/-) | (1,07,67,534)
Amount Received 31,88490/- | 2,81,11,996/- | 3,05,65347/-
during the year (412,155/-} | (6,8242,740) | (88,19,561/-)
{Previous year) ‘
Amount Paid during Nil 1,88,41,396/- | 68,97,731/-
the year (97,92,768/-) | (7.18,22,216) | (53/46,832/-)
(Previous year)
Balance as on 31,88,490/ - 42,25570/- | 3,79,07,879/-
31stMarch, 2016 (NIl (1,34,96,170) | (1,42,40,263)

{Previous Year)

* Previous Year figures are changed due to the regrouping /reclassification of some

companies.,
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24 During the year, the Company has accounted for deferred Tax in accordance with
the Accounting Standard 22 “Accounting for taxes on income” issued by the
Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Deferred Tax assets and
Liabilities arising on account of timing difference are as under:

Deferred Tax Liability consists of following components

Written Down Value under the Companies Act 4,58.71,109/-

Written Down Value under the Income Tax Act 4,20,99,801/- 3 :
Difference 37,71,308/-

Tax @ 30.90% 11,65,334/-
Less: Opening Balance (Liabilities) ‘ 13,84,556/-
(A) (2,19,2221-)
Deferred Tax Asset consists of following components
Profit/(Loss) for the year difference (67,21,906/-)
Add: Provision for Gratuity & Leave Encashment 38,43,372/-
Difference ~ 28,78,534/-

Tax @ 30.90% (8,89,466/-)

Less: Opening Balance (Assets) 2,43,906/-
(B) (11,33,372/-)
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) A-®) (0141504
SIGNATURE TO NOTES

As per our attached Report of even date

For Santosh Shah & Associates For Trade Wings Ltd For Trade Wings Ltd For Trade Wings Ltd
Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sdf- Sdf- Sd/-

Santosh A. Shah Dr. S.P.Mittal Mz. Vishwanathan Nair Mz, Siddhanth Nimbalkar
Partner Chairman & MD CFO. Company Secretary
M.No.46548 (DIN 00221661) (PAN AEXPN2757E) Membership No. A40636
Firm Registration No. 121711W _

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai * Place: Mumbai

Date: 30+ May, 2016 Date; 30t May, 2016 Date: 30 May, 2016 Date: 30 May, 2016.
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To,

AUDITORS” REPORT

The Members of
Trade Wings Limited

Report on thé Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of M/S
TRADE WINGS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as “The Group”), comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 315t March,
2016, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Account, the Consolidated
Cash Flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

The Holding Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associates in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of The Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. The Holding Company’s
Management is also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including
financial information considered necessary for the preparation of Consolidated
Financial statements. This responsibility also includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, which has been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the management of the Holding Company,
as aforesaid. '

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued
and specified by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, under section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatements,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the &glditor’s judgment, including the assessment




of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting estimates made
by the Holding Company’s management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

6. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence
obtained by other auditors in terms of their reports are sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

7. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India:

(a) In the case of Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the State of Affairs of the Group as
at 31stMarch 2016;

(b) In the case of Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the Loss of the Group for
the year ended on that date; and '

(c) In the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the
Group for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

8. We have not audited the financial statements of One subsidiary company,
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs.2302.06 lakhs and total revenues of Rs.2321.00
lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. The financial statements of this subsidiary company have been
audited by other auditors.

Report on Other Lepal and Regulatory Requirements

9. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept so
far as appears from our examination of those books; (proper reports adequate
for the purpose of our audit have been received from subsidiary company not
visited by us).

(¢) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidatéd Statement of Profit and Loss,
and the Consolidated Cash Floyg Statement dealt with by this report is in



agreement with the books of account and with the reports received from
subsidiary company not visited by us.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the
Holding Company as on March 31, 2016 and taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Holding company, its subsidiary and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure-A.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according the
information and explanations given to us:

i)

iii)

The consolidated financial statements disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its consolidated financial positions of the Group.
Attention is drawn to Point 24 of Note 28 of the consolidated financial
statements which described the uncertainty related to the outcome of
the lawsuit filed by the Group against Tulip Hotels Pvt. Ltd. Our
opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

The Group has made provision as at 31st March, 2016 as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, for ‘material foreseeable
losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and
its subsidiary company during the year ended March 31, 2016.

For SANTOSH SHAH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Santosh A.Shah
Partner
Membership No. 46548

Firm Registration No. 121711W
Mumbai
Date: 30t May, 2016
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 10(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the
members of Trade Wings Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016)

Report on the financial control under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Act:

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Trade
Wings Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
dates.

Managements Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

5. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of fraud and errors. The adequacy and
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAL These standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate .
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedure to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material
misstatement on the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE AUDITORS” REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 10(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the-
members of Trade Wings Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purpose in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately
and fairly reflect the transaction and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial control over financial
reporting, including the possibility of conclusion or improper management
overrides of controls, material misstatements due to fraud or error may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company is in the process of defining internal control
procedure and operational system hence we are not in a position to comment on
adequacy on internal financial controls system over financial reporting as at 31st
March, 2016.

For SANTOSH SHAH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

SANTOSH A. SHAH

Partner

Membership No. 46548

Firm Registration No. 121711W
Mumbai

Date: 30% May, 2016
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TRADE WINGS LTD
Consolidated Balance Sheet As at 31st March, 2016, CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED
As At As At
NOTES 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
() EQUITY AND LIABILTVIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
a) Share Capital 1 30,000,000 30,000,000
b) Reserves and Surplus 2 (112,256,837 {116,512,806)
{2) Share application money pending allotments
(3) Non-Current Liabilities
a) Long-term borrowings 3 69,518,028 61,679,642
b} Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 4 13,794,986 14,356,622
c) Other long term liabilities 5 37,907,879 18,200,141
d) Long-term provisions 6 23,861,155 23,231,033
(4) Current Liabilities - "
) Short-term borrowings 7 103,553,117 84,758,586
b) Trade Payables 8 122,667,426 117,828,967
¢} Other Current liabilities 9 255,799,230 250,165,065
d) Short-term provisions 10 3,875,611 2,680,809
Tuotal 548,720,595 486,388,059
(I ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
2) Fixed Assets
i) Tangible Assets 11 202,450,167 200,144,608
ii} Intangible Assets - -
b) Non-current Investments 12 1,381,701 1,381,701
¢) Long-term Loans and Advances 13 3,870,688 3,870,688
d} Other hon-current assets 14 1,605,034 2,543,813
(2) Current Assets . .
a) Current Investment i35 18,916,637 524,735
b} I[nventories 16 21,079,046 15,645 363
c) Trac_le Receivables 17 205,005,840 170,387,003
d) Cash and cash equivalents 18 24,515,895 26,204,679
¢) Short-term loans and Advances 19 62,557,929 45,102,361
f) Other current assets 20 7,337,664 14,583,108
Total 548,720,595 486,388,059
Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of account 28
Santosh Shah & Associates For Trade Wings Limited For Trade Wings Limited For Trade Wings Ltd.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Mr, Santosh A, Shah

Partner

Membership No.46548

Firm Registration No.121711W
Place: Mumbai

Date: 30th May, 2016

Sd/-

Dr. Shailendra P, Mittal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00221661

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2016

100

Sd/-

Mr. Vishwanathan Nair
CF.0O.

PAN: AEXPN2757E

Place; Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2016

Sd/-

Siddhanth Nimbalkar
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A40636

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2016




TRADE WINGS LTD
Consolidated S of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March,2016. CONSOLIDATED CONSOQLIDATED
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
NOTES 31403/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
1 | REVENUE
Revenue from operations 21 198,744,006 365,566,022
Other Income 22 16,719,782 21,065,070
Total Revenue 415,463,878 386,631,092
I |EXPENSES -
Cost of materials consumed 3 19,560,108 19,240,115
Employee benefits expenses 24 141,570,507 122,872,457
Financial expenses 25 30,232,833 26,692,955
Depreciation and amortization expenses 11 14,739,422 23,565,113
Qther expenses 26 204,927,822 196,575,601
Total of Expense 411,030,692 358,946,241
1L | Profit before plional and extra-ordinary items and tax (I-IIy 4,433,186 {2,315,149)
IV | Less: Exceptional ftems
Prior period Expenses (Net) - -
¥ _ Profit before extra-ordinary items and tax (M1-1V) 4,433,186 (2,315,149)
VI | Less: Extra-ordinary items - -
VII { Profit befor tax (V-VI} 4,433,136 (2,315,149},
VIII | Less: Tax expenses
(2) Current tax - -
(b} Deferred tax 561,638 53,889
(¢) Tax paid for earlier years - -
{d) Excess Provision - 400,000
(e} Penalty on sarvice Tax {11,219) (1886)
() Interest on TDS {37,725) (161,010}
{g) Penalty on Wealth Tax (528,714) (15,640)
(h) Provision for MAT - (102,644)
(16,020} 374,408
IX | Profit/Loss for the period from continuing operations (VII-VIIT) 4,417,166 (1,940,740),
X | Profit/Loss for the period from discontinuing operations - -
XI | Less: Tax expenses of discontinuing operation - -
XII | Profit/Loss for the period from discontinuing - -
sperations [after tax| (X-XI) - -
XM | Profit/Loss for the period (IX+XID) 4,417,166 (1,940,740)
Earning per equity share: 27 - -
(2) Basic 162 (0.50)
{b) Diluted
Balance Carried Forward to Balance Sheet AT 166 (l,94l]l7402
Accounting Policies and Notes formmg part of accounts 28

Santosh Shah & Asyociates
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Mr.Santosh A, Shah

Partner

Membership No 46548

Firm Registration No. 121711W
Place: Mumbai

Date: 30th May, 2016

For Trade Wings Limited

Sd/-

Dr, Shailendra P. Mittal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00221661

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2016

101

For Trade Wings Limited For Trade Wings Limited

Sdr-

My, Vishwanathan Nair
CFO,

PAN: AEXPN2757E

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2016

Sd/i-

Mr. Siddhanth Nimbalkar
Company Secretary
Membership No,: A40636

Place: Mumba
Date: 30th May, 2016




TRADE WINGS LTD
C lidated Cash Flow S for the year ended 31st March, 2016
CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED
2015-16 2114-15
Rupess Rupees Ry Rupees
A. {CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
[Profit for the yzar 5,910,329 - - -1112852|
Adjustment for Now cash & Otheritems : ' -
Provision for Gratity & Leave Encashment 462,288 2,740,996
Depreciation 14,900,619 23,565,113
Disconti jon / Amal jon of company (122,919 (2,933,574
Defered Tax Lisbility 2,054.801) (8R1,777)
Provision for Tax 577658 (320,520)
Credit Balance written back £1.112,895) (294,648)
Loss/(profity from patinership firm (#7,577) (5,200)
Loss on sale of Invesiments - -
Exchange difference 619,663 130,651
Inferest and ficaneial charges 0,460,503 28,077,506
[nterest and exchange flucluation on FRN - -
Mamagement Fees - -
[nierest income passon| 45927859 (2,787,277 47,491,180
Opern(ing 2mm before working céeital chanw 45,927 850 46,178,328
Adjustments for :
(increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (35,095,971) 18,708,620
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (5,433,678)| (507,592)
(Increase}Decrease in Correnit investments (18,391,902) (75691
(Increase)/Decrease in short tenm loans and advances (10,692,124} 3,299,768
(Increase)/Decrease in Non Current investments - 7,491,700
(Increase)/Mecrease in Other current assets 9,671,745 6,017,150
(Increasel/Decrease in long (erm loans and advances 17,355,736 21,184,627
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities and provisions 15,144,050 (25,085,863}
Increase/(Decrease) in long term bortowings. - .
Increase/{Decreage) in other long term lisbilities . -
Increase/{Decrease) in long term provisions - .
Increase/{Decrease) in Short term bormowings 5848632 (5,152,050}
Increase/{Decrease) in wade payables 4,520,712 (4,947,127)
Increase/{Decrease) in current liabilities 3,974 491 (6,216,505)
Increaseh Decrease) in Short term provisions 1,808,854 (1,262,596)
- (11,296,455) - 12,754,434
Cash generatet from operations 34,631,404 59,132,762
Add: Reduction in Provision for Taxes (377.658) 320,520
NET Cﬁl FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 34,053,746 59,453_&2_
B |CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Deletions/(Additions) to lixed asscls, including capital work-in-|
dvances and for exchangs fluctuaon (2.371,38%) (23.695,531)
Purchase ol fixed assets (8.711,873) (19,061,288)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - -
Payments on account of investnents and advances 1o be adjusted
against equily / Investment in FDX - {136,189)|
Loans/Advances to other companies - -
Income from invesiments 986,356 5,290
Proceeds from sale of imvestments - -
Intetest income 3,665,409 2,787,277
- (6,431,493) - (40,100 44 1))
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (5,435,493) (40,190,441
C |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
praceeds from Issuance of share capital
Reduction in Revalualion Reserve {161,197} (161,197}
Proceeds from borrowings £ Long Term Borrowings - 4,384,060
Repayment of borrowings / Tern Loan from NCB (2,028,346} (20,825,435)
[Tenn Loan 11,651 368 20,000,000
[Exchange difference {519,664} (330,651)
Bormowings from related parties 14,672,368 32,371,562
Repayment of borrowings from rclated parties (27,595,11%) (29,797,341}
Interest and financial charges pad (25,230,446) (25.951.626)
29,311,036} - (20.310,628)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES {19,311,036} (20,310,628)
(i) |NET CASH FLOWS DURING THE YEAR (A+B+C) (1,688.783) (957,786)
(i) |Cash and cash equivalents {opening balance) 26,204,678 27,162,463
Cash angd cash equivalents (Closing Balance) 24,515,895 26,204,679
Total of (i) + (i) 14§15£95 26,244,674
Balance sheet Amount Rs. 24,515,895 26,204,67%

Santosh Shah & Assaciates
Chartered Accountants

Sa-

Mr. Seatash A.Shah

Partner

Mewnbership No. 46548

Fitm Registration No. [21711W
Place: Mombai

Dare: 30th May, 2016

Sdif-
Dr. Shailendra P. Mittak

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00221661

Place: Mumbai
Datz: Juth May, 2016

For Trade Wings Limited

For Trade Wings Limited  For Trade Wings Limited

Sdi- Sdf-
Mr. Vi Nair  Mr.5i h Nimbalk
CFO. Cowmpany Secretary

PAN: AEXPN2TSTE

Place: Mumbai

Date: 30th May,
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TRADE WINGS LTD
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS CONSOLIDATE CONSOLIDATE
NOTE 1 As At As At
SHARE CAPITAL 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Share Capital
Authorised
3000000 equity shares of Rs,10 /- each 3,00,80,000 3,00,00,000
100000 equity shares of Rs, 106 /- sach 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
200,600 6% Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each (re-classified) 2,00,00,000 2,00,80,000
1000 13.5% Cutnulative Preferances Shares of Rs. 1(00/- sach (redeemable) 1,00,000 1,00,000
350,000 6% Preference Shares of Rs, 100/- each (fresh) 3.50,00,000 3,50,00,000
350,000 9% Nor Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each (redecmable) 3,58,00,000 3,50,00.000
13,01,00,000 13,01,00,004
Issued, Subscribed and paid up
3000000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each Fully Paid 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000
Note: Of the abave equity shares allotted to vendors are fully paid-up
pursuant to a contract without pavment received in cash
3,00,00,000 3,00.60,000

Notes (Hotel):

L. Allthe shares are held by Trade Wings Limited, the holding company and its nominges,
2. Of the above, 95,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each have been issued as fully paid Shares on acquisition of the Hotel Division of Trade Wings Limited.

DETAILS OF SHARE HOLDERS, HOLDING MORE THAN 5% As At As At
SHARES IN THE COMPANY 31/03/2016 31/03/2015

Rupees Rupees
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Narayani Hospitality & Academic Institution Pvt. Ltd.
No. of Shares 22,34,34] 22,34,344
% Holding 74.48% 74.48%
Benjo Holdings Pvit, Ltd.
No. of Shares 1.87.736 1.87,736
% Holding 6.26% 6.26%
Sagarkanya Inv, & Finance Pvt, Ltd
No. of Shares 1,584,525 1,84,523
% Holding 6.15% 6.15%
Vishwadeep Inv, & Finance Pvt. Ltd
No. of Shares 1.81,870 1.81.870.
% Holding 6.06% 6.06%
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CONSOLIDATE CONSOLIDATE
NOTE 2 As At As At
RESERVE AND SURPLUS 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Capital Reserve:-
Opening balance 613337 6,13,337
Add:- Addition during the year - -
Less:- Deduction during the year - -
6,13,337 6,13,337
Revaluation Reserve
Opening haiance 57.51,982 59,13,17%
Add:- Addition during the year - -
Less:- Deduction during the year (1,61,197) (1,61,197
55.90,785 57,51,982
General Reserve
Opening balance 21.77.804 21,77,804
Add:- Addition during the year - -
Less:- Deduction during the year - -
21,77,804 21,77.804
Other Reserve:-
Profit and Loss Afc:-
Opening Balance (12,50,55.92%) (12,01,81,613%)
Add:- Profit/Loss during the year 44,17,166 (149,40,740)
Less:- Loss from amalgamated company - 29,33,574
(12,06,38,763) (12,50,55,929)
{11,2_2&5,837) (11,65,12,306)
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CONSOLIDATE - CONSOLIDATE
NOTE 3 As At As At
LONG TERM BORROWINGS 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees

Secured:-
Term loan from Naticnal Co-operative Bank Ltd - 1162 1,14,53,247 1,22,06,14%
Add: Interest accrued and due 1,32,438 1,40,834
Less: Repayable within 1 year 10,53,597 10,58,062
(Refer Note 1 belaw) 1,05,32,088 1,12,88.921
Term lean from National Co-aperative Bank Ltd - 1167 85,74,496 94,99,071
Add: Interest accrued and due 99,147 1,04,876
Less: Repayable within 1 year 582,756 791,126
(Refer Note 2 below) 80,90,887 . 84,12,821
Term loan from National Co-operative Bank Ltd - 1163 1,12,21,708 1,19,18,151
Add: Interest accrued and due 1,2%,893 : 1,37.610
Less: Repayable within 1 year 7,860,411 7,57,265
{Refer Note 3 below} 1,05,71,150 ) 1,12,98,496
Tata Capital Finance Services Ltd. 4,18,694 13,20,651
Less: Repayable within | year 4,18,694 9,01,957
(Refer Note 4 below) - 4,18,694
Car loan 3,232,661 . 4,47,647
Less:Repayable within ! year 1,27,235 1,24.586
(Refer Note 4 below) 1,595,426 3,22,661
Natienal Co-Op. Bank (1166) 1,48,55,729 1,83,86,005
National Co-Op. Bank (1164} 1,09,05,153 1,15.52,044
National Co-Op. Bank (1168) 1,43,67,555 -

4,01,28,437 2,99,38,049

4,95,18,028 6,16,79,642

(1) Self Liquidating Additional ODI from National Co-operative Bank secuered by the extension of registered mortgage of leased property of 305 sq.mts.
Located on the 1st floor of the premises Bhogilal Building, K. Dubash Marg, Kalaghoda, Mumbai inclusive and personal guarantee of Dr, § P Mittal,

Rate of Interest -The Company's borrowings from banks ate at an effective weighled average rate of 13.50%p.a .(previcus year 13.509%) as per sanction letter
no. NCB/NPBR/ /2013-14, dt. 03rd October, 2013,

(2} Self Liguidating Additional ODI from National Co-operative Bank secuered by the extension of registered mortgage of leased property of an area
admeasuring 3284 sq.ft. including common area of toilet block and entry hall of 282 sq.ft. on 1st fIr of the Bhogilai H. Bldg,., 18/20, K. Dubash Marg, Kalaghoda,
Fort, Mumbai - 23 and persenal guarantee of Dr. S P Mittat.

Rate of Interest ~The Company's borrowings from banks are at an effective weighted average rate of 13.50%p.a .(previous year 13.50%) as per sanction letier
no. NCB/HO/Lean/9/2014-15/ /2013-14, dt. 31st May, 2014,

(3) Self Liguidating Additional ODI from National Co-operative Bank secuered by the extension of registered mertgage of leased property of 2n area
admeasuring 3284 sq.ft. including commoen area of toilet black and entry hall of 282 sq.ft. on Ist fir of the Bhogilal H. Bldg., 18/20, K.Dubash Marg, Kalaghoda,
Fort, Mumbai - 23 and personal guarantee of Dr, S P Mittal.

Rate of Interest -The Company's borrowings from banks are at an effective weighted average rate of 13,50%p.a .(previous year 13.50%) as per sanction letter
no. NCB/HO/Beard/12/2013-14, dt. 315t May, 2014,

(4) Vehicle Loan are secured against hypothetication of vehicles Financed. The rate of Interest 13.25% p.a.

(5) Loan sanctioned and disbursed during the year is under process of creation of charge as explained by the management, hence the auditors has relied upon
the same and shown under secured loan.
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CONSOLIDATE CONSOLIDATE
NOTE 4 As At As At
DEFERRED TAX LIARILITIES 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax Liability 1,91,25,358 1,93,57,352
Less:- Deferred tax assets (53,30,372} (50,00,730)
1,37,94,986 1,43,56,622
NOTE 3 As At As At
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES 31/03/2016 31/03.2015
Rupees Rupees
Other long-term liabilities
Loans and advances from related parties:-
Directors & Others 3,79,07,87% 1.82,00,141
3,79,07.879 1,82,00,141
NOTE & As At As At
LONG TERM PROVISIONS 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Provision for employee benefils
Gratity (Non Current Liability) 1,95,88,267 1,92,15,103
Leave Encashment (Nen Current Liability) 42,72,888 40,15,930
2,38,61,155 $,32,31,033
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CONSOLIDATE CONSOLIDATE
NOTE 7 As At As At
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Secured:- - -
Cash Credit Fecilities - .
(a) from bank 53,68,758 -
Union Bank Of India (Refer Note | below) 3,18,53,389 3,05,08,424
Vijaya Bank {Refer Note 2 befow) 6,08,33,661 4,80,16,777
Amount repayéblc within next 1 year on Term Loans 37,84,309 36,51,885
Loans and advances from related parties - -
Deposits 17,14,000 25,81,500
10,35,54,117 8.,47,58,586

{1} Cash Credit facility from Union Bank of India is secured by hypothecation of book debts and stock of foreign currencies and encashed travellers' cheques
present and future, and guaranteed by some of the Directors of the Company. In addition, the Company has undertaken to create charge in favour of Banks
on immovable property at Flat No. 12-B ,bldg %1, Pacharatna Society, Thane, Flat No. 12-B , bldg no.53, Sevakunj Society, Thane and Unit No.6, Surya
Vihar, Dundahera, Gurgaon, Delhi,

Rate of interest - The company’s borrowings fram banks are at floating rate of BR + 3.75% subject to change time to time as per the sanction letter No.
MSEM ADY 1367414, dated 08th QOctober, 2014,

(2a) Cash Credit facility from Vijaya Bank is secured by hypothecation of book debts and guaranteed by some of the Directors of the Company. In addition,
the Company has undertaken to create charge in favour of Banks on immovable property at unit No.1101,1102,1103 Mittal Tower B-Wing , Bangalore, Unit
Nec. 141 and 44 of Adarsh Ind.Estate, Andheri, Mumbai. and Flat No.2, B Wing, Aarti Soceity, Mumbai 400 034 and Corporate guaraniee of Mfs. Narayani
Hospitality & Academic Institations Pvt, Ltd. & M/s. Trade Wings Logistics (India) Pyt. Lid.

(2ai) Adhoc limit from Vijaya Bank vide sanctioned letter no. MRO/GML/CC/190/2015-16, Dt 24/11/2015, with

same Terms & Conditions.

(2b) Shop No. 9, First Floor, "Manoram Arcade” at Vakilwadi, Nashik land bearing survey No. 609/A/2B, Municipal No. 430-J-1, admeasuring about 362.04
5q.mtrs.

(2c} Office No. 110, on the first floor 350.37 sq. ft. i.. 32.55 sq, mirs carpet area in the project known as Shanti City at village Talegaon Dabhade of Taluka
Maval, Dist. Pune land bearing survey No. 532 {old $. No. 714) CTS No. 2431 to 2435 and 3294 totally admeasuring about 2.94 hect. i.e. 29400 sq. mits and
16542.4 5q. mtrs.

(2d) Shop No. 12413, first floor, "Manoram Arcade” S.No. 66%/A/2B off, M.G.Road, opp. Sharda Sankul & Nilesh Dry Fruites, Vakilwadi, Nashik.

Rate of interest - The company's borrowings from banks are at floating rate of BR + 3.80% subject to change time to time as per the sanction letter No,
MRO/GM/CC/310/2014-15, dated 24th March, 2015,

NOTE 8 As At As At
TRADE PAYABLES 31/03/2016 31/03/2018
Rupees Rupees
Trade Payables 12,26,67.426 11,78,28,967
12,26,67,426 11,78,28,967

There are no Micro & Small Eaterprises to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding tor mare then 45days at the Balance sheet date:The
information regarding Micro & small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with
the company, This has been relied upon by the auditors,

107




CONSOQLIDATE CONSOLIDATE
NOTE % As At As At
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Other payables:-
Current-labilities 6,44,88,948 6,54,18,428
Money Received pending Appropriate treatment 16,29,60,237 16,29,60,237
Group company balances 16,61,150 -
Stawmtory liabilities 2,66,88,895 2,17,86,400
25,57,99,230 25,01,65,065
CONSOLIDATE CONSOLIDATE
NOTE 10 As At As At
SHORT TERM PROYISIONS 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Provision for employee Benefits:-
Leave Encashment {Current Liability) 8,14,680 5,79,875
Gratuity (Current Liability) 29,58,288 13,87,239
Other provisions -
For Taxation 1,02,643 7.13,695
38,75,611 26,80,809
NOTE 11 As At As At
TANGIBLE ASSETS 31/0372016 31/0372015
' Rupees Rupees
Non-current Assets
As on 31st March, 2016 20,24,50,167 20,61,44,608
20,24,50,167 20,61,44,608
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CONSQLIDATE CONSOLIDATE
NOTE 12 As At As At
NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS 31/03/2016 317632015
Rupees Rupees
Investment in Property
Investments in Equity Instruments
(a) Trade wing (cuzlutta) pvt Lid 25,000 25.000
{250 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each)
Less:- Pravision for Dimulution in value (24,999) (24,999)
(b) Trade wing Tours Ltd 100 100
{1 equity shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid up)
(c) National Ce. Op. Bank 5,21,000 521,000
(49000 Shares of Rs. 10 each)
(d) Drishti Lifestyles Lid. 11,000 11,000
{Rs.118 shares of Rs.100/- each)
() Videocon Limited 7,500 7,500
Investments in Preference shares
(a) Trade wing Tours Ltd 2,000 2,000
(20 13.50% Redeemable cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.L00/- each.)
Investments in Government securities
N .S.C of Rs. 5,000/- deposited with Customs Authorities. 15,000 15,000
Natienal Co-Operative bank 6,50,100 6,50,100
(65014 shares of Rs.10/- gach)
Investients in Partnership firms
(a) Narayani Associates capital account 75,000 75,008
(b} Global Kitchens LLP 1,00,8600 1,060,000
13,81,701 13,81,701
Name of the Partnership Firm Narayani Associates Narayani Associates
Delails of Partners % of Profit/Loss 2 of Profit/Loss
Trade wings Lid 20 10
Narayani Hospitality & Academic Institution 80 80
Dr Shailendra P Mittal - 5
Glebal Kitchens LLP Giobal Kitchens LLP
Narayani Hospitality & Academic Institution 80 80
Trade Wings Limited 15 15
Dr. S.B Mittal 5 5

110




CONSOLIDATE CONSOLIDATE
NOTE 13 As At As At
LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES 317032016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Security Deposits:-
Doubtful
Misc. Deposits 38,70.688 38,70,688
38,70,688 38,70,688
CONSOLIDATE CONSOLIDATE
NOTE 14 As At As At
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 31-03-2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Other non-current assets
Fixed Deposits & Accrued Interest 16,05,034 . 2543813
16,05,034 2543813
NOTE 15 As At As At
CURRENT INVESTMENTS 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Investments in Debentures or bonds
Investments in Partnership firms (Narayani Asso.) 1,89,16,637 1,78,823
Investments in Partnership firms (Global Kitchen LLP) - 345,912
1,89,16,637 5,24,735
NOTE 16 As Al As At
INVENTORIES 31/03/2016 3100372015
Rupees Rupees
{As Taken,Yalued and certified by the management)
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade 2,10,79,040 1,56,45,363
2,10,79,046 1,56,45,363
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NOTE 17 As At As At
TRADE RECEIVABLES 31/03/2016 31/03218
Rupees Rupees
Unsecured and considered good:- - .
Outstanding for more than 6 months 5,31.15,470 2,89,15,388
Others 14,15,20,973 14,15,84,064
Less:- Provision for Doubtful Debts (1,12,449) (3,12,449)
Add:- - -
Debts due by Directors or other officer of - -
company or fims of private co's in which any - -
director is a pariner or director ot member, 98,81,846 (0y
20,50,05,840 17,03,87,003
CONSOLIDATE CONSOLIDATE
NOTE 18 As At As At
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Cash in hand 50,87.411 35,07,359
Balance with schedule and non schedule banks:- - -
Current Account 1,79,63,941 1.61,40,032
Foreign currency account 12,999 12,999
Fixed deposit account 14,51,544 65,44,289
2,45,15,89% 2,61,04,679
CONSOLIDATE CONSOLIDATE
NOTE 1% As At As At
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 313016 310312015
Rupees Rupees
Loans and advances to related parties:-
Unsecured and considered good:
Balance with Revenue Authorities 4,67,45,327 2,79,33,246
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind 15,34,074 12,37,467
Debit Balance in Afc Payable 90,45,085 1,01,37,635
Provisions - 271,817
Prepaid expense 2,83,885 6,67,196
Staff advance 4,17,256 20,74,397
Others 1,071,970 102,610
Loans and deposits 39,24,332 26,777,993
6,25,57,929 4,51,02,361
NOTE 2¢ As At As At
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 314032016 31A3/2015
Rupees Rupees
Groeup company balances: 55,98,241 36,90,387
Other Current Assets 17,39,423 1,08,83,721
73,37,664 1,45,83,108
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS CONSOLIDATE CONSOLIDATE
NOTE 21 . YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
REYENUE FROM OPERATIONS 31-03-2016 31/03/2015
‘ Rupees Rupees
Income from Money Changing Business 1,19,48,838 2,60,13,090
Revenue from Operations (Hotel) 23,08,36,738 20,89,70.828
Commission and Agency Service Charges 10,54,92,876 7.96,88,255
Service Charges (Net) 5,04,65,644 5,08.93,849
39,87,44,096 36,55,66,022
NOTE 22 YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
CTHER INCOME 31-03-2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Interest earned
On Bank Fixed Deposit 1,26,373 5,75,901
On Loan to Subsidiary Co. & Others 19,587 64,534
On Income Tax Refund 8,286,479 7,55,453
From IDBI Vasco 4,89.102 2,06,184
Miscllaneous Income 42,51,660 94,004,737
Rental Income 46,15,096 56,87,003
Other Commission 2,27,806 1,916
Incentives on Card Sale - 8,760
Profit or (Loss) from Narayani Associates 47,577 5,2%0
Sundry Credit balance W/Back 1,30,254 5,73,312
Share of Profit from Globle Kitchens LLP 37,881,980 37,81,980
1,45,85,914 2,10,65,070
NOTE 23 YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
FOOD CONSUMED 31-03-2016 31-03-2014
Rupees Rupees
Foed & Beverages Consumed 1,95.60,108 1,92,40,115
1,95,60,108 1,92,40,115
NOTE 24 YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 31-03-2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 13,07,67,544 11,23,62,815
Contribution to PF and Other Funds 44,75,228 37,03,983
Staff Gratuity 44,86,679 46,38,559
Family Pension 3,29,602 14,22,029
Staff Leave Encashment 15,11,454 11,45,071
14,15,70,507 12,28,72,457
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CONSOLIDATE CONSOLIDATE
NOTE 15 YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
FINANCIAL EXPENSES 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Interest expense:-
On Bank Loan
Union Bank of India 4,518,716 4,131,763
Vijaya Bank 8,673,727 $,335,938
National Co-op Bank 4,503,237 8,372,215
Interest Exp. {Hotel} 4,735,749 -
(On Naravani Associates - 133,024
On Directors Loan 1,624,514 1,267 816
On Car Loan 1,208,022 326,320
On Service Tax 2,835,000 2125879
On Corperate Loan - 1,185,205
Total 28,098,965 27,878,160
NOTE 26 YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
OTHER EXPENSES 31/0322016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Staturoty Auditor's Remuneration
- Audit Fees 1,306,397 1,401,036
- Tax Audit Fees 50,000 50,000
Rent, Rates, Taxes and Fees 6,011,819 6,958,62¢
Insurance 1,922,387 2,503,815
Motor Car Expenses 2,567,182 2,229,233
Postage, Telegrame, Telephone and telex 6,943 009 6,906,069
Printing and stationery 5,204,075 6,343,767
Electricity & Water Charges 2,670,231 2,646,711
Membership & Subscription 815,812 392,196
Bank Charges 2,379,475 1,599,739
Lepal & Professional Charges 32778317 29,827,143
Software Charges 1,305,732 -
Repairs & Maintenance - -
- Building 20,015,323 17,685,960
- Machmery 13,296,272 12,653,642
- Others 11,543,478 11,771,533
Bad Debts 86,644 779,635
Other Operating Expenses - -
- Consumption of Stores 7,319,677 6,843,377
- Power & Fuel 22,874,061 20,762,907
- Water Charges 3,008,533 2,124,183
- Security Expenses 2,377,285 1,744,421
- Laundry Expenses 2,409,894 2,487,600
Other Expenses 58,032,219 © 51,034,730
204,927,822 188,756,330
NOTE 27 YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
EARNINGS/LOSS) PER SHARE 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Rupees Rupees
Number of equity Shares of Rs 10each fully paid up at
the beginning of the period. 12,900,200 12,900,200
Number of equity Shares of Rs 10each fully paid at
the period end 12,500,200 12,900,200
'Weighted Average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year 12,500,200 12,900,200
Net Profit for the year 4,417,166 (1,940,740)
Basic/Diluted Profit Per Share 1.62 (0.50)

Nominal Value of Equity share
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28 - CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF THE
ACCOUNTS

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.

1y

2)

3)

4)

3)

6)

GENERAL
Accounts are prepared on accrual basis in keeping with normally accepted
accounting principles.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company is engaged in Hoteliering, Foreign Exchange& Travel business.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention on accrual basis, andare in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
applicable Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, except in the case of fixed assets as given below:

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Management to make
estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported income and expenses. The Management believes
that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates.
REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is derived from hotel service including rental of rooms and Sales of
food and beverages and from sale & purchase of foreign currencies, tour
packages and air ticket bookingsand other allied services, Revenue is
recognized when the rooms are occupied and the services have been
rendered.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis by reference to the
principle outstanding and at the rate applicable.

FIXED ASSETS _

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Cost compromises purchase price and any
other attributable cost to bring the asset to its working condition for its
intended use. Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on
Written Down Value (WDV) at the rates prescribed under schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Fixed Assets are carried at cost less depreciation.Cost of Fixed Assets

includes addition on account of revaluation of property situated in Adarsh
Society and in Bhogilal Building.
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7) DEPRECIATION
The company provides depreciation as under:

I Depreciation is provided as per the Written Down Method at the rates
prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

I Depreciation on addition during the year is being pr;)vided on a pro rata
basis from the date of addition of the asset.

Tl Depreciation on additions due to revaluation to assets has been provided
with reference to the balance useful life of the asset determined on a basis
consistent with the policy for book depreciation. The additional charge of
depreciation on account of revaluation is withdrawn from Revaluation
Reserve and credited to the Profit & Loss Account.

IV Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000/~ acquired during the year have been
depreciated at 100%.

V Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight line method
over the useful life of assets estimated by the management. Depreciation
for assets purchased/sold during the period is proportionately charged.

For this class of assets, based on internal assessment and independent
technical evaluation carried on by the external valuer, the management
believes that the useful lives as given above best represents the period
over which management expected to use these assets.

Useful life
Building 60 Years
Plant & Machinery 15 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Computer 3 Years

8) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying value of
tangible and intangible assets for any possible impairment. An impairment
loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

9) BORROWING COST
Borrowing cost that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of cost of such asset. A
qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Profit &
Loss account.

10) INVESTMENTS :
Investments are stated at cost. Long Term Investments are stated at cost and
provision for diminution in value of investment is made unless the
diminution is of temporary nature.
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Profit or Loss on sale of long-term investments is arrived at after deducting
the average carrying amount of the total holding of investments on the date
of sale.

11) INVENTORY VALUATION
The stock of Foreign Currency has been valued at the Bank buying rate
prevailing at the year end.

Inventories are valued at cost on First-In-First-Out basis. Requisite
adjustment for spoilage, obsolescence or damage is made wherever
necessary. Cost of operation and other supplies are charged to expenses at
the time of issue,

12) CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The Cash Flow Statement is prepared using the “Indirect Method”. The Cash
Flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

13) ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME AND EXPENSES:
Income and expenses are accounted in books of account on accrual basis

In the case of out - bound tour, invoices are raised on the basis of
confirmation of tour received from the customers, but the income is
recognized on the completion of the tour. Accordingly, amounts are shown-
as sundry debtors vis-a-vis advance from customers.

14) FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of transaction. Current assets and liabilities not
covered by Forward Exchange contracts are retranslated at year end
exchange rates and the profit/loss so determined and also the realised
exchange gains/losses are reflected in the Profit and Loss account, Balance in
Fore1gn Currency Accounts to the extent of Liabilities in ForeIgn Currencies
is translated at the interbank selling rate.

15) LEASES _
The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of leases for
residential and office premises.The leasing arrangements, which are non-
cancellable, are in the range of eleven months and usually renewable by
mutual consent on agreed terms. The aggregate lease rentals payable are
charged as rent including lease rentals.

16) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
a) Short term - _
Short term benefits include salaries and performance incentives. The

undiscounted amount of short term employees benefits expected to be paid
in exchange of service rendered by the employees are recognized as an
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expense in the statement of profit and loss during the year when the
employees render the service to the company.

b) Long term

The company has defined contribution and defined benefits plan. The plans
are financed by theCompany and in case of some defined contribution
plans by company along with employees.

¢ Defined contribution plans '

The company’s contribution to provident fund and family pension fund
made to regular authorities and where company has no further obligation
are considered as define contribution plans and are charged as expenses in
the statement of profit and loss as they fall due based on amount of
contribution required to be made.

o Defined benefits plans

Expenses for defined benefits gratuity are calculated as at the balance sheet
date by independent actuaries (using the projected unit credit method) in a
manner that distributes expenses over the employees working life.These
commitment are valued at the present value of the expected future payment
with consideration for calculated future salary increase, using discount rate
corresponding to the interest rate estimated by the actuary having regard to
the interest rate on government bonds with remaining term that is almost
equivalent to the average balance working period of employees. Actuarial
gain/ losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in
which they arise.

17) RETIREMENT BENEFITS:
Contributions to Provident Fund and Pension fund are accounted on accrual
basis. Liability in respect of leave encashment and gratuity due to employees
is accounted on actuarial basis as certified by an approved Actuary.

18) OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The Company has a scheme for compensated absences (Leave Encashment)
for employees, the liability for which is determined on the basis of an
actuarial valuation, carried out at the Balance Sheet date.

19) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:
Contingent Liabilities are not provided for but are disclosed separately.

20) ACCOUNTING FOR PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITY &
ASSETS :
Provisions are recognised in terms of Accounting Standard 29 - ‘Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ issued by the ICAI when there
is a present legal or statutory obligation as a result of past events where it is
probable that there will be outflow of resources to settle the obligation and
when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Contingent Liabilities are recognised only when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
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uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or

“where any present obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an
ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources
are provided for. '

21) INCOME TAXES

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard on
“Accounting for taxes on Income”, (AS 22) issued by ICAL Tax expenses
comprise both current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid/recovered from the tax authority using the
applicable tax rates. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for
future tax consequence attributable to timing difference between taxable
income and accounting income that originates in one accounting period and
that are capable of reversing in one or more subsequent periods and are
measured at relevant enacted tax rates. At each balance sheet date, the
Company reassesses unrealised deferred assets to the extent they become
reasonably certain or virtually certain of realization, as the case may be.

22) EARNINGS PER SHARE '
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax
attributable to equity shareholders by the number of the equity shares.

In the opinion of the management of the Company, carrying amount of all
Current Assets, Loans and Advances are other receivables is not less than

their realizable value in the ordinary course of business.

Sundry Debtors and Sundry Creditors subject to confirmation in part of hotel.

Earning in Foreign Exchange (As Certified by the Management})

Current Year Previous Year
i} Rooms and F & B Revenue Rs.2,08,20,325/ - Rs.4,01,43,722/-
if) Foreign Remittance made Rs.13,85,384.33

23) As per Accounting Standard AS-18 “Related Party Disclosures” issued by the
ICAL company’s related parties disclosed as below:

Names of related parties and description of relationship
(as of the Balance Sheet date i.e. 31t March 2016)

Associate/Group Concerns;

1. Narayani Associates
2. Narayani Hospitality & Academic Institution Private Limited

Key Management Personnel:
1. Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal

2. Mr. Ajay Vageria
3. Mr. Rajan Dani
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Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the company’s
management and relied upon by the Auditors.

24) The MOU that was executed by and between one of the promoters of the
Company with Tulip Hotels Pvt. Ltd. inter alia for management of Bogmallo
Beach Resort and for executing agreement to sell 50% of the shares of the
company on 26t April 2000 has been terminated by the said promoter vide its
Advocate’s notice dated 27t January 2007 with retrospective effect from 1<
November 2006. The company along with its promoters has also initiated
legal proceedings against Tulip Hotels Pvt. Ltd. and its directors and certain
employees in Mumbai and Goa courts and the same are sub-judice as of the
date of the signing of the balance sheet.

The company as per a legal opinion of its legal advisors and a Chartered
Accountant has shown an amount has Rs. 16,29,60,237/- towards “Money
Received Pending Appropriate Treatment” under Other Current Liabilities.

Notwithstanding the above, the company has sought to appropriate the said
amount against the damages that have been claimed by the company against
Tulip Hotels Pvt. Ltd. The company has therefore thought it fit to categorize
the said amount under Other Current Liabilities till the outcome of the suit
pending in the Vasco Da Gama court.

25) The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006” has been determined
to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

26) Previous year's figures have been regrouped or rearranged wherever

necessary.

SIGNATURE TO NOTES
For Santosh Shah & Associates For Trade Wings L.td For Trade Wings Ltd For Trade Wings Ltd
Chartered Accountants
8d/- Sd/- 5d/- Sd/-
Santosh A. Shah Dr. S.P.Mittal Mr. Vishwanathan Nair Mr. Siddhanth Nimbalkar
Partner Chairman & MD CFEO. Company Secretary
M.No.46548 (DIN 00221661) (PAN AEXPN2757E) Membership No. A40636
Firm Registration No, 121711W
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 304 May, 2016 Date: 30 May, 2016 Date: 30% May, 2016 Date: 30% May, 2016.
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Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : L63040GAT1949PL.CO00168

Name of the Company: Trade Wings Limited _
Registered office : 6, Mascharenhas Building, M.G. Road, Panaji, Goa - 403001

66t Annual General Meeting - September 30, 2016

| Name of the member (s):
Registered Address:
E-mail Id:

Folio no. /Client ID:
DP ID:

I/We being a Member(s) of shares of the above named company, hereby
appoint

T TNAIIE o oo ieeseseransneeeneenenenrenenvemmmsesnnes e BMALLIA L
e s b Y T U O PP PP PR PP PP PN

..................................................................................................................

SIGNATUIe! .. ... veeurerrrrrennesnnrnnnnnn, OF failing him/her

D NG . oo ceeererneeresersrsensensensensssmmmmenmee e BMAI I o
F s Lo b oy O PSPPSRI PR
Signature or failing him/her

3. Name: GEmMailid oo
e Ty TSP UTPPS PP PSPPI

.................................................................................................................

SIENAUTE. ...covvrecriieeinies e s, OF failing him/her

as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Sixty
Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, September 30,
2016 at 4.00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at 6, Mascharenhas
Building, M.G. Road, Panaji, Goa - 403001 and at any adjournment thereof in respect
of such resolutions as are indicated below:




Res.
No.

Description

For

Against

Ordinary Business

1.

a) To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2016 including the Audited Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2016 and the Statement of Profit and Loss,
Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on
that date and notes related thereto together with the Reports
of Directors’ and the Auditors’ thereon.

b) To receive, consider and adopt the Consolidated Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2016 including the Audited Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2016 and the Statement of Profit and Loss,
Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on
that date and notes related thereto together with the Reports
of the Auditors” thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN
00221661), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

To ratify the appointment of M/s. Santosh Shah & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company.

4.

To appoint Branch Auditors for the financial year 2016-17.

Special Business

5.

Appointment of Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN 00221661), as
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

6.

Appointment of Mrs. Jacinta Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) as a
Non-Executive (Woman) Director of the Company.

7.

Determination of fees for delivery of any document through a
particular mode of delivery to a member.

To approve the payment of professional fees paid to Ms. Beena
Natubhai Barot (DIN: 07326016} as an Additional Non-
Independent Non-Executive (Woman) Director of the Company

Signed this day of 20

Signature of Shareholder

Affix
Re. 1/-
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s) Signature of Proxy holder(s) Signature of Proxy holder{s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting,.




TRADE WINGS LIMITED
Registered Office: 6, Mascharenhas Building, M.G. Road, Panaji, Goa - 403001
Website: www.tradewings.in , Email: companysecy@twltravel.com
CIN:; L63040GA1949PLC000168

ATTENDANCE SLIP

66t Annual General Meeting on Friday, September 30, 2016 at 4.00 p.m. at 6,
Mascharenhas Building, M.G. Road, Panaji, Goa - 403001.

Please fill attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall

Name of the members(s)...........coovivninns O PSRN
INAme Of the PIOXY™ . ..ottt e s s s s
Registered address.............. O U U YUY P PP

Eomail TD oo
FOLO NO: «vooeoeserrsrresseess DPIDE oo esrssseeesseeneennensnes CHENE ID# L v, '

Number of shares held ...........cooons
I certify that I am a registered member/proxy for the registered member of the
Company and [ hereby record my presence at the 66t Annual General Meeting of the

Company on Friday, September 30, 2016 at 4.00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the
Company at 6, Mascharenhas Building, M.G. Road, Panaji, Goa - 403001.

Signature of member/ Authorized Representative/proxy holder(s)
Note: Please {ill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall

* Applicable in case Proxy is attending the meeting,
# Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.
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